












WHEREAS, Paul led successful efforts to secure the enactment of Public Law 108-233
authorizing up to $20 million in federal funding for the IRWD hvine Basin Groundwater and
Surface Vy'ater Improvement Act in2004 and securing the entire $20 million irl federal
appropriations for the Natural Treatment System, kvine Desalter Project and Regional Brine line
between 2007 and2009.

WHEREAS, Paul has received many awards, accolades and honors for his important
contributions to the water and wastewater industry, including the Government Engineer of the
Year Award by the Orange County Branch of the American Society of Civil Engineers.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch
Water District commends Paul Jones for his exemplary seryice' His dedication and outstanding
efforts to the District set an example to all employees. On this occasion, the Board extends its
best wishes to Paul Jones on his new role as General Manager with Eastern Municipal Water
District.

SIGNED and APPROVED this l lth day of July, 2011.

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER
DISTRICT and of the Board of
Directors thereof

Secretary, IRVINE RANCH WATER
DISTRICT and of the Board of
Directors thereof

A-2



WORKSHOP

July 1 1,2011
Prepared by: Christopher Smithson nl
Submitted Ly: Debby ðhr-"y ,t . .h"
Approved by: Paul íon X¡^,f; w \

0y, h\r/ u
t

SETTTNG CONNECTIOIT FEES ANp pROpERTy TAXES FOR Fy 2011-12

SUMMARY:

Each year, the Board considers connection fees and property tax rates, and makes adjushnelrts as
a result of changing assumptions and capital needs. For FY 2010-11 the Board adopted a
connection fee increase of 9.5% without making any changes to commercial and industrial fees;
there were no changes to the ad valorem property tax rates.

Using the most current data available, staffupdated the major assumptions in the Enterprise
Model (the Model) and has incorporated the most recent capital plans and absorption schedules
as provided by the major property developers within IRWD's service area. Assumptions and
preliminary runs of the Model were reviewed with the Finance and Personnel Committee on June
5,2A11. During the meeting, the Committee identified two additional scenarios it wished to
have modeled at the first Board workshop. Seven scenarios were presented at the hlrrre 27 ,2011
Board Workshop; two minor changes were identified and have been included in Exhibit "8".
The Board recognized that all seven scenarios resulted in a consolidated water/ sewsr
connection fee amounts that approximately converged by FY 2016-17.

Connection fees and property tax rates were again considered by the Finance and Personnel
Committee on July 5. The Committee identified certain factors that will need to be brought back
to the Committee over the next 90 days for furttrer review. The Committee also requested that
staffpresent impacts to developers and homeowners by improvement district at the Board
Workshop. On July 7,2011, the District met with various stakeholders from the developer I rcal
estate community to review staffs recommendations and the various scenarios and receive their
comments, which are included below.

Based on the analysis completed to date and the need to meet the Board-approved revenue
objectives, staff recommends increasing connection fees by 9.5% (or approximately $319 for a
representative improvement district) for FY 20ll-I2 and adjusting some property tax rates to
more appropriately apply tax revenue to match annual debt service as identified in Exhibit ooD".

For this workshop, staff is requesting that the Board review the connection fees and property tax
impact data and modeling; discuss input received at the luly 7,20011 stakeholdsrs meeting, and
provide direction for adoption of connection fees and property taxes at its July 25,2011 meeting.

BACKGROUND:

Each year an analysis of the District's existing and future connection fees and property tax rates
is prepared and presented to the Board for its consideration. The following is a list of objectives
established by the Board for setting connection fees and property tax rates:

4

Conn_Fees_and_Prop_Taxes_-_FYl l-12.docx

















































































l.

EXIilBJT (TA''

IRVINE RANCH 1VATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 2 . GENERAL POLICIES

The follorring policies have been established by the District, and are applicable to all
personnel.

c.

D.

There may be other hours worked as necessitated by specific job requirements.

Jf for.qny reason,.an employee is lrlrable to report for work, the employee's
immediate supervisor must be notified as soon as possible.'

Uniforms ar^e required apparel in certain specified jobs within the District. These
District uniforms will be_þro-vided, launddred and inaintained by the District.- 

--
SYpervisors are responsible for coordinating with the warehousê for the issuance
of unitbrms to newly hired employees. These uniforms are the property of the
Dishict and will be surrendered uþon termination of ønployment.-

Each ønployee of the District is authorized a 10 minute rest period or coffee
break dylng the morning and again in the aftemoon. each erirploy"r *ttõ it
lssigned to work over 5 hours is authorized a meal period of 3b minutes.
Employees are not paid.foll".4 periods. These pøiods are designated by their
supervisors on a scheduled basis.-

Employees are ppid twice each month - the 23rd of the month for the period of
the lst through the 15th day of the month, and on the 8th of the month tor ttr" 

-

period of the 16th through the last day of the preceding month.

Safety is at the forefront of the District's concerns. The California and Federal
pc.gupational Safety and Health Act and the Irvine Ranch Water District Sufrty
Policypertain to safety aq4 *q appli.cable to all District employees. Safety 

r

Tgulatio-ns, as e-stablished by the Safety and security ManaÈer, will be stãted in
the Employees Safety Maruâl andplacêd on the s:\círive wh-eró they are u"""r.iUt"
!o all e.mqloyees. Safetyrules will be strictly enforced. (See PolicyÎo. fZ - Suióiv
Incentive/service Award pro_gram). The Diétrict wiil aßo follow íts tn¡ury und -
Illness Prevention Program (See pblicy No. 33 - Injury and Illness prevention
Program).

The District rJovj{gs a smoke-free work place. Both the sand canyon
Headquarters building and the Michelson Operations Center multiple buildings
r¡cllding workshop areas and any other enciosed work areas are non-smokinã
facilities. In addition, all District vehicles are considered non-smoking areas. "

A h¡gh fire\azard also exists in most of the District. Many areas are posted
against smoking, but even if not posted, employees are cautioned to üse extreme
care with cigarettes, matches, anä any equipìnent that might start a fire.

F.

4-1



POLICY NO.2. GENERAL POLICIES

G. It is importa¡t to recognize that all employees of the District derive their salaries
from a public a.gency. Each must be seirsilive to the public with regard to peisonãt
appearance, attitude, personal behavior and work habits in an effoñ to assure that
public co:tfidence is well placed.^Supe¡visors and managers will stress "priàe'; ãJa
means of ensuring a-high l_evel of ønployee response. Iñ controversy, lt'here a
judgment is required, the final authorityiests with the General Manãger.

H. lpnlo4nent with.the District is on an at-will basis. Both the employee and the
District have the_light to te_rminate the employment at anytime, with orwithout
cause or notice. This at-will basis may nof be-modified, abrogaÍed or altered in
any_wqy; ex.cePJ in a- written agreønent signed by the GeneralManager and
ratifïed by the Board of Directõrs.

I. Equal Employment Opportunity Commitment

It is the District's policy to recruit, screen, emplo¡ retain, promote, terminate, and
otherwise.treat all_empioyees and job appiicanis óá ttre básìs ofmeit,
qualifi_cations, and competence, This pôlìcy shall be applied without iegard to any
individual's sex, 

-rac€, c^olor, religion,-national origin, äcestry pregnancy, age,
marital.status, liability for servicè in the Armed Fõrcês of the Ûìritãd Staíá," '
medical condition, physical or mental disability.

Thispolicy is in accordance with the laws of the United States and the State of
California and reaffirms the District's-continuing commitment to provide àqual
opportunity to all ernployees and applicants for employment.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources

General Manager

Date

@
Date

^-2



1.

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDUR.ES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 6 - HIRING AND TERMINATION

Commitment to ComplÍance with Federal Laws prohibiting Employment of
Unauthorized Aliens

The District is committed to fuli cornpliance with the federal immigration laws. These
laws require that all individuals pass an emptoyment verification procedure. This
procedure has been established by law and requires that every individual provide
satisfactory evidence ofhis/her identity and legal authority to work in the United States
no later than three business days after he/she begins work. Accordingly, all new
employees must go through this procedure.

Hiring and Employment of Relatives or Individuals rvith a Residential
Relationship/Conflicts of Interest

The District desires to avoid situations in which actual or potential conflicts ofinterest
may exist' To implement this objective, the District will attempt io avoid assignrnents that
involve actual or potential conflicts of interest, as well as working relationships involving
relatives or individuals with close personal relationships that may potentially lead to
complaints of favoritisrn, lack of objectivity, or employee morale and dissension
problems that can result from such relationships.

In keeping with this policy, relatives of employees and individuals with whom employees
reside or have a close pç{$anal relationqhip are not eligible for employment with the
District in any situation where potential problems ofsuporvision, safety, security or
morale exist or where personal relationships may creale an actual or potential conflict of
interest cause disruption, or create a negative or unprofessional work environment. For
purposes ofthis polic¡ relatives include an employee's parent, child, spouse, brother, or
siste¡ or a stepparent, stepchild, stepbrother, or stepsister. Relatives also inciude any
parent, child, brother or sister ofan employee's spouse. As noted above, the policy is not
limited to relatives and applies to other covered situations involving actual and potential
conflicts ofinterest.

If two employees become subject to the restrictions of this policy after they are hired, the
District reseryes the right to determine whether or not an actual or potential conflict of
interest or an affect on supervision, safety, security or morale exists. The District also
resery€s the right to determine that other relationships that arc not specifically covered by
this policy represent actual or potential conflicts ofinterest as well. In any case where the
District determines, in its sole discretion, that a relationship between two employees may
create an actual or potential conflict ofinterest, or affect supervision, safety, security or
morale, the District may take whatever action it determines to be appropriate to avoid the
actual or potential conflict ofinterest. such action may include, but is not necessarily
limited to, transfers, reassignments, or where it deems such action appropriate,
disciplinary action up to and including possible termination.

A-3



4.

POLICY NO. 6 _ HIRINC & TERMINATION

Any questions regardìng this conflict ofinterest policy should be directed to the Director
of Human Resources, If an employee becomes involved in any such actual or potential
conflict of interest, he or she must notifu his/her supervisor immediately.

3. Postlng Policies

The Human Rssources Department of the District is responsible for posting employment
opportunities available within the District. Employnent opportunities ordinarily will be
posted for a minimum of fìve days on various bulletin boards at the headquarters building
and the Michelson Operations Center. Employment opportunities are also communicatecl
to all employees via e-mail and all emplo¡,ment opportunities open to the public are
posted on the IRWD website (www.irwd.com). The District reserves the right to post in-
house employment oppodunities within sub-department work areas only.

Employees who are interested in posted positions should complete a job bidding form
(available in the Human Resources Department or at s:\Human Resources\FormsVob Bid
Form.doc) and submit it to the Human Resources Department for consideration prior to
the closing date. However, employees who have been employed less than six months with
the District may not qualify for a transfer or promotion to another position if the change is
not in the best interest ofthe District.

Eligibility for Promotions, Transfers and Reassignments

The District encourages employees to apply for promotions to positions for which they
are qualified.

Employment opportunities are posted on various bullefin boards at the headquarters
building and the Michelson operations center. Employment opportunities are also
communicated to all employees via e-mail.

Employees who have been employed by the District for six months and are interested in
posted positions should complete a job bidding form (available in the Human Resources
Department or at s:\Human Resources\FormsVob Bid Form.doc) and submit it to the
Human Resources Department for consideration prior to the closing date of the position.
Plomotions and transfers shaÌl be based on the ability, qualihcations, and potential ofthe
candidates for the positions. Ernployees are not automatically entitled to a promotion or
transfer for which they apply.

The District desires to avoid sittrations in which actual or potential conflicts ofinterest
may exist. To implement this objective, the Dístrict will attempt to avoid assignments that
involve actual or potential conflicts ofinterest, as well as working relationships involving
relatives or individuals with close personal relationships that may potentially lead to
complaints of favoritism, lack of objectivity, or employee morale and dissension
problems that can result from such relationships.

Initiation of Hiring Process

The Human Resources Department of the District is dedicated to employing the most
qualified individuals for available positions. Department Managers must keep the Human

6-2

^-4



POLICY NO.6- IIIRING & TERMINA"TION

Resources Department informed of their recruiting and manpower needs. Planning is
essential to recruiting, screening and selection of a candidate within the time frame
required.

Budgeted Posítion

The Department Manager is responsible for determining that an additional
employee has been approved in the budget and that ajob description exists for the
position.

Position Categories

In an effort to determine eligibility for various benefits, the followìng position
categories have been established:

Regular FulþTime Employees: Defined as those employees who are hired to
work on a regular basis for 40 hours a week. They are eligible for all benefits.

Regular P¡rt-Time Employees: Defined as those employees who are hired to
work on a regular basis for less than 40 hours a week. They are eligible for pro-
rated vacation and holiday pa¡ as well as workers'compensation and pERS
benefits. Some regular part-time employees may also qualify for medical benefits.

Full-Time Temporary Employees: Defìned as those employees who are hired to
work for a limited duration for 40 hours a week. They are only etigible for holiday
pay, workers'compensation benefits and the Non-Regular Employee Retirement
Program. Some full-time temporary employees may also qualify for medical
benefits. (See Policy No. 7 - Temporary Employees for specifìc information).

Part-Time Temporary Employees: Defìned as those employees who are hired to
work for a limited duration for less than 40 hours a week. They are only eligible
for pro-rated holiday pa¡ workers'compensation and the Non-Regular Employee
Retirement Program. Some part-time temporary employees may also quali$ for
medical benefits. (See Policy No. 7 - Temporary Employees for specifìc
information).

Student Intern: Defined as those employees who are currently enrolled
in a minimum of 12 units of school study, They are eligible for pro-rated
holiday pay and workers' compensation benefits.

Contract Labor Status: A person hired under this status is not an employee of
the District, but is an independent contractor. To qualif, for contract labor status,
a person must be able to successfully complete an IRS Department of the Treasury
SS-8 form. They must also show proof of workers'compensation coverage.

Personnel Requisition Form

In order to initiate the hiring process, a Personnel Requisitíon Form must be
completed (available in Human Resources Department and at s:Wuman

A.

B.

C.

6-3

A-5



POLICY NO.6- HTRINC & TNRMINATION

Resources\Forms\Personnel Req.doc). Once the form has been completed,
reviewed and signed by department management, the requisition is routed to the
Human Resources Dopartment for processing.

The Personnel Requisition is used to initiate necessary Employment Opportunify
postings, newspaper advertisements, and to update the District's employee
turnover report to the Board of Directors.

6. Selection, Interview and Hiring Process

Selection

The applications of all candidates who apply for an open position at ihe District
will be forwarded to the appropriate depaftment supervisor by the Human
Resources Department. Each department is responsible for screening all
applications for the experience, education and qualifications required for thejob.
All applications are returned to the Human Resources Department, with
information indicating those applicants with whom the department wishes to
affange an interview. Applications are reviewed by a Human Resources
representative to ensure all applicants selected meet the minimum qualifications
ofthejob.

These applicants are contacted to arrange a personal interview with the
appropriate department and a Human Resources Representative.

In-house applicants (employees of the Dishict) may also bid for the open position
by completing a Job Bidding Form. These forms are submitted through the
Human Resources Department, and forwarded to the applicable department. All
in-house applicants are given the same consideration as all other applicants, based
on their qualifications and the requirements of the job.

Interview

An interview will be conducted with the selected applicants by department
representatives including the direct supervisor ofthe open position and a
representative of the lluman Resources Department.

The department representatives are responsible for preparing a list ofjob-related
questions that will be asked during the interview. Each applicant will be asked the
same general questions, in an effort to fairly evaluate their qualifications.

Questions are evaluated by each interviewer based on the applicant's knowledge
and experience. A value may be assignod to each question.

Hiring Process

Once a selection has been made from the applicants interviewed for an open
position at the District, the process continues with the top candidate(s).

A.

B.

C.

A-6



POLICY NO.6. HIRING & TERMINATION

1. Backgroundlnvestigations

A thoror.rgh background investigation will be conducted for the top
candidate(s). 'l'his investigation may include a Consumer Credit Report
anrVor Investigative Consumer Report. Applicant(s) will be notifìed of this
requirement, and will be required to provide background information and
authorization to conduct the invostigation, These investigations will bo
conducted for all position categories.

2. Department/Distrlct Approval to Hire (Worksheet)

A New Hire Change of Status Worksheet (available in the Human
Resources Department or at s:\Human Resources\forms\COS
Worksheets.xls) must be completed and signed by the Department
Director of the hiring tlopartment prior to an offer being extended to any
applicant. All worksheets are forwarded to the Human Resources
Department, along with the original application and any evaluation
paperwork. The Director of Human Resources is responsible for approving
all offers of employment. In some instances, the General Manger's
approval may also be required.

3. Offer of Employment

Offers of employment are generally made verbally by an authorized
representative of the Human Resources Department. Under no
círcumstances are offers of employment to be made by any other
representative of the District without the consent and knowledge of the
Director of Human Resources, and in the event such offers arc mado
without such consent or knowledge, they are not binding.

Afler an offer of employment is made, employrnent is contingent upon
successfu lly completing the following criteria.

a) Physical Exemínation

The hnal canditlafe(s) for the open position will be required to
complete a physical examination to assess the candidate's ability to
perform the essenrial functions of the job. The cost for the
applicant's physical will be paid by the District. The candidates
¡nust successfully complete the physical examination to be
considered for employment.

b) Drug/Alcohol Screening

'lhe District is committed to providing a safe, efficient and
productive work place. To achíeve this objective, the District
desires to prevent drug or alcohol use from adversely affecting the
rvork place, Accordingly, candidates for positions with the District
are required to satisfactorily take and pass a drug and alcohol

6-5

A-7



POLICY NO.6- HIRING & TERMINATION

d)

screening examination prior to beginning employment. The
screening will be performed at the District's expense.

c) Verification of Lawful Work Status Under Immigration Rules

The District is required by the federal immigration laws to verifu
the identity and legal ability to work ofall individuals before they
can be hired. In keeping with this obligation, documentation that
shows each person's identity and legal authority to work must be
inspected. Each employee must also attest to hislher legal authority
to work by completing an I-9 Form (available in the Human
Resources Department) provided by the federal govemment. This
verification must be completed within tluee business days after an
individual is hired. All offers of employment and continued
employment for positions in the United States are contingent on
fumishing satisfactory evidence of identity and legal authority to
work in the United States.

Work History Verification

A work history investigation will be conducted by telephone
inquiry or by mail by the Human Resources Department or the
investigative firm conducting the background check for all
applicants being considered for employment. If it is not possible to
obtain work history information by telephone, a letter of inquiry
will be used. Information concerring the last three positíons held
or l0 years will generally be obtained. Falsification ofrvork history
will generally be grounds for immediate termination or withdrawal
of an employment offer.

Driving Record

Many positions require the use of a District vehicle and DMV
records must meet the established standards of the District's
Insurance Underwriters. Successful candidates for employment by
the District are required to provide their driver's license number to
the Human Resources Department so that a Motor Vehicle Report
can be obtained.

Educational History

Educational history information will be verified for all candidates
being considered for employnent. The District's Human Resources
Department will request applicable transcripts from high school
and college institutions attended by the new employee, based on
the educational requirements of the job. Verbal verification may be
received by the investigative firm conducting the background
check. Falsi{ìcation ofschool history will generally be grounds for
immediate termination or withdrawal of the employment offer.

e)

6-6

A-8



POLICY NO.6 - HIRTNG& TERMINATION

D. Probationary Period

L Conditions of Probation

a)

b)

All new employees will be subject to a probationary period of 12 months.
The probationary period is a period of time during which a new
employee's work is closely monitored in order to determine if the
employee is suited for the position for which he or she was hired.
Unsatisfactory performance at any time during the probationary period
may be a basis for disciplinary action up to and including termination. A
Probationary Employee Review will be completed by the employee's
direct supervisor and discussed with the employee after completion of 4
months of employment and again after 8 months of employment. In the
case ofan unsatisfactory Probationary Employee Review, the supervisor
will determine if the probationary employee will be discharged without
recourse or allowed to continue as a probationary employee. If pemitted
to continue as a probationary employee, the employee will be provided an
opportunity to rectify any unsatisfactory areas ofperformance

Extension ofProbation

Le¿ves of Absence

The probationary period will be extended when a probationary
employee is on a leave of absence of any kind for more than 14

consecutive calendar days during the probationary period. The
probationary period will be extended for the length of time the
probationary employee is on a leave ofabsence.

Extension for Performance Reasons

Probationary periods may be extended for up to 6 months for
perfonnance reasons. The reasons for the extension must be
documented on a Probationary Employee and approved by the
Department Director and the Director of Human Resorrces. The
total probationaryperiod maynot exceed 18 months, excluding
periods ofleave as described above.

Notice of Extension

Probationary employees must be notified in writing if their
probationary period will be extended for performance reasons or
due to a leave ofabsence.

Completion of Probation

Ifthe probationary period has not been extended as described above,
employees receiving a rating of "3" (Meets Requirements) or better on

c)

6-7

A-9



POLICY NO. 6 - I{IRING & TERMTNATION

their first annual review will have satisfied the initial l2 month
probationary period requirements and will be taken off probation.
Employees receiving less than â "3" rating (a.03-" or lower) on their first
annual ¡eview will be subject to disciplinary action inciuding, but not
limited to, extension of probation, demotion, suspension or termination

A probationary employee whose probation has been extended will be
reviewed at the conclusion ofthe extended probationary period and will be
notified ifthey have successfully completed the probationary period, An
employee may be terminated prior to the end of the extended probationary
period ifperforrnance deteriorates or does not improve.

Successful completion ofthe probationary period is not a guarantee of
contìnued employment. Employment with the District is on an at-will
basis. Both the employee and the District have the right to teminate the
employment at any time, with or without cause or notice. This at-will basis
may not be modified, abrogated or altered in any way, except in a written
agreement signed by the General Manager and ratified by the Board of
Dircctors.

4. Change of Position During Probation

A probationary employee is not eligible to bid for open positions during
the first 6 months of employment. Exceptions may be granted at the
discrotion of the Department Director and the Director of Human
Resources. Ifa probationary employee changes positions during the
probationary period, the probationary period for the new position shall be
the greater ofthe remainder ofthe current probatíonary period or the tluee
month probationary period applied to all position changes.

E. Orientation Procedures

The Dishict has established an orientation program to help new employees make a
satisfactory adjustment to their new work environment. The Human Resources
Department will arrange and conduct a new hire orientation by the last week of
each month f'or all employees hired during the current month. The presentation
will include information on the District's policies and procedures, employee
benefit information and enrollment, as well as general new employee information.
Department Heads and./or immediate supervisors are asked to arrange the new
ernployee's work schedule to permit them to attend the program on District-pai{
time.

Termination

A. Gencral Policy

The relationship between the employee and the employer is for an unspecified
term and is considered employmcnt at will. Consequently, the employment
relationship with any employee can be terminated at will, either by the employee

A-10



POLICY NO. ó - HTRING & TERMINATION

or the District, with or without cause or advance notic€. This at will policy is
intended to be the final expression ofthe District's understanding regarding the
terms under which employrnent may be terminated, and it may not be modified,
limited, augmented or changed in any way except in writing sigred by the General
Managor of the District and the employee.

The Distriot maintains a guideline for progressive discipline to help employees
improve their inadequate work performance or to coffect problems. These
guidelines are outlined in The Disciplinary Process Guidelines for Managers and
Supervisors (available in the Human Resources Department and at s:Vluman
ResourcesVrocedures\Disciplinary Process.doc). These guidelines do not change
the at will nature ofthe employment relationship. Furthe4 the guidelines do not
provide an exhaustive list of offenses that may lead to discipline or tormination,
nor are they intended to be binding or restrictive of the District's ability to impose
discipline. The District retains the right to discipline, demole, transfer or take
other employment action in its sole discretion, with or without cause or notice.

When an employee leaves employment for any reason, a two-week notice is
requested. Although such a notice is not required, an employee who is eligible to
rcccivc sick leave benefits upon termination will receive such benefits only if two
weeks notice is received.

The Human Resources Department will schedule an exit interview with each
employee who leaves the District, regardless of the reason. This interview allows
employees to communicate their views on their work with the District. It also
providas the employee an opportunity to cliscuss issues concerning insurance and
other benefits. At the time of the exit interview, employees are expected to retum
all Districþfumished uniforms, tools, and equipment, such as I.D, cards, keys,
vohicles, manuals, credit/fi.¡el cards and any other District property in their
posscssion or control. Anangements for clearing any outstanding debts with the
District and to receive final pay are also mado at this time. Employees are
reminded that any work (i.e.; reports, correspondence, software, etc.) or work in
progress completed by the employee while employed by the District such as
reports, correspondence, software, etc. is the property ofthe District and should be
tumed over to the employee's supervisor upon termination. Once all items are
retumed, the employee's linal paycheck will be released.

B. Voluntary Terminatlon of Employment

Each Department Head or Supervisor will immediately inform the Human
Rcources Department of a voluntary termination and will forward the employeo's
letter ofresignation. Ifno letter ofresignation is provided, the Supervisor will
request a Voluntary Resignation Form from the Human Resources Dcpartment
(also available at s:\lluman Resources\FormsVoluntary Resignation.doc) for the
employee to complete.

An employee who is absent from work for three or more consecutive work days
without contacting his/her supervisor. manager, or the Human Resources

6-9

A-11



POLICY NO.6- HIRING& TERMINATION

department will be considered to have voluntarilv terminated emnloyment with
the District. Also. if an employee accepts other emnlovment or fails to retum to
work on the next regularly scheduled work day following the expiration of hisfrer
leave ofabsence. it will be considered that the employee has voluntarily
terminated hiVher cmployment (see Policv 19).

Once notifìcation of a termination has been received, the Human Resources
Department will generate a termination Change of Status form using the on-line
Change of Status system and will route it to the appropriate Department Head or
Supervisor for onJi¡'rc approval. Tho approval process rnust be cornpleted at least
one week prior to the termination date to allow for the preparation of tha
employee's final paycheck. This check will be presented to the employee on his
last day of work.

C. Involuntary Termin¡tion of Employment

ln all instances where emplo¡rment of an employee is involuntarily terminated, the
Human Resources Department will be notified prior to the actual termination
decision in order to review the grounds for termination and to grant approval for
such action.

The Human Resources Department will generate a termination Change of Status
form using the onJino Change of Status system and will route it to the appropriate
Department Head or Supervisor for on-line approval.

The employee may be placed on disciplinary suspension for a period of ten ( l0)
working days without pay. The Human Resources Department or the supervisor of
the employee will, in such cases, ordinarily send the employee a letter describing
the rcasons for and/or events leading to the District's decision to terminate the
employment of the employee. The employee will be given an opportunity to me€t
with his¡her Supervisor and the appropriate next level supervisor which may
include the Director of the department, the Ceneral Manager and/or the Director
of Human Resources to discuss the decision to tenninate employrnent,

The next level supervisor, Director of the department, General Manager and/or
Director of Human Resources will, after hearing both sides of the issue, make a
determination that termination of employment is or is not ân appropriate course of
action and will inform the Human Resources Department of thc dccision.

If a decision is made to termínate the employment of the employeg the Human
Resources Department will request that the Depa¡tment Head or Supervisor draft
a letter to thc employee, again outlining the reasons for and/or the events leading
to this action and informing the employee of the effective date of termination.
Once approved by the Human Resources Department, the letter will be presented
to the employee.

6-10

A-12



POLTCY NO. 6. TIIRING & TERIVI¡NA,I'ION

As with a voluntarytermination, the employee is required to raturn all Distriot
property including keys, vehicles, uniforms, [.D. card, tools, equipment, Dlstrict
manuals, software, report$, and/or conespondence.

Thc final paychecÌ will bc prcsantcd at the conclusion ofthe emplo¡rco's last day
of employmenL Tho value of any Dishict prop€rty not r€turned will be deducted
frorn the omployeo's final paychcck.

APPROVED:

Dlrector of Hum¡n Recourcec
JanuoqÊ{#e+0July 1 1. 201 I

Date

Jaauary+lJe$July I l. 201 I
DateGcneral Manager

A-13



IRVINE RANCII WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 8. SALARY

1. General Policy

The District is committed to maintaining compensation rates that are competitive in the
community and our industry. The Schcdule of Classifications and Salary Rate Ranges
(Salary Grade Schedule - available at s:V{uman Resources\Compensation) of the District,
as adopted from time to time by Resolution of the Board of Directors, sets forth the range
of compensation for each position.

In order to arrive at an optimum salary program, the following criteria is considered:

A. Appropriateness:

The salary for each position should be based upon what pertains and is generally
appropriate in similar situations in this same emplo)¡ment market area, in the same
general time frame.

B. Consistency:

Both employee and the District should have assurance that the wage scale as
approved represents a consistent representation ofjob duties and wages.

C. Predictability:

The Salary Grade Schedule ordinarily will allow employees to predict a wage base
for each position.

D. Undcrstandable:

The Salary Grade Schedule and the basis for various rate and position structure
pcrtinent to wages should be easily understood.

E. Flexibility:

The program should be broad enough and allow enough flexibility in range as to
be useful for the longest possible period of time.

F. Simplicity:

The program, and the inclusion of the above elements, must be structured
in such a manner as to facilitate ease and simplicity in communication.

The District reserves the right to hire an employee below the classification they are
applying for if the individual does not meet the requirements of the applied-for position.
The hiring classification will be considered a "trainee" position. At the District's
discretion, an employee will be reclassified into the actual position they applied for when
requirements are met.

râ-14



POLICY NO. 8.. SALARY

2. Wages and Hours

It is the intent of the District to comply with all State and Federal wage and hour laws, as
applied to Special Districts.

The Human Resources Department will interpret policy and assure compliance with this
policy.

The Payroll Department performs the mechanics of payroll computation, which includes
the calculation of benefits, standby pay, and overtime compensation.

3. Basic Employee Work Week

The standard "work week" at the District is a period of seven consecutive 24hour periods
beginning at noon on Friday and ending at noon the following Friday. The General
Manager must approve in writin g any work schedule other than the standard work week
or the 44/36 work plan. For employees working a44136 schedule with a scheduled day
off other than Frida¡ the workweek will begin at noon on their normally scheduled day
off.

Employees who work the standard scheduled workweek will generally work from 8:00
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday of each workweek. Exceptions to this standard
schedule of work hours must be approved by the appropriate Department Head.

4. 44136 Work Plan

T\e 44/36 work plan was established to implement and administer a flexible work week,
and it applies to most regular and temporary full-time, as well as regular part-time
employees. Department Heads will ensure compliance with this policy, however, it will
be left to their discretion to identify those positions that may not be eligible to participate
in the flexible workweek. For these identified positions, the standard scheduled
workweek will apply.

A. Hours

Official office hours at the Headquarters facilitlLarcT:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.,
Monday through Thursday. Friday hours are 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. The
Headquarters facility will be closed every other Friday other than a small number
of Customer Service staff who will be available for customer service issues.
Offrcial office hours at the Michelson facility are 6:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday
throueih Thursday. Frida)¡ hours are ó:30 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.

B. Flexible Work Plan

The 44/36 hour work plan redistributes the eighty hours normally worked during a
two calendar week period to allow employees to work nine days instead of ten
during the two-week period. This allows employees to be off work one additional
day every other week.

For departments working at half staff every Friday. eEach Department Head is
responsible for the division of the Department into two working groups. This
division should include Employees, Supervisors, Managers and Directors.

8å-1s



POLICY NO.8.. SALARY

Employees should be matched with "like" employees comparing "like" duties and
responsibilities. The two resulting groups should be "paired" as closely as possible
to allow for adequate coverage on Fridays when all Departments participating in
the program will be working with half stafß. Department Heads are authorized to
assign personnel between 6:30 a.m, and 5:30 p.m. with variablo length lunch
hours. At a minimum, a skeleton crew must be on duty to cover all ofÍice hours.

C. Overtime

Overtime pay will be paid to any non-exempt employee working in excess of the
scheduled hours. For example, any employee working in excess of t hours on
Monday through Thursday or in excess of 8 hours on his or her scheduled Friday
to work will receive overtime pay.

Although the District is exempt frorn the Industrial Welfare Commission Order
regarding payment of overtime for any hours in one week, to avoid any conflict or
confusion, the work week will begin each Friday at noon, and end the following
Friday at noon, thus creating two 4O-hour work weeks. For employees working a
44/36 schedule with a scheduled day off other than Friday, the workweek will
begin at noon on their normally scheduled day off.

D. Compensatory Time Off

Exempt Employees: Exempt employees are paid a fixed salary that is intended to
cover all of the compensation to which they are entitled. Because they are exempt,
such employees are not entitled to additional compensation for extra hours of
work or time off in lieu of extra hours of work. The District does not maintain any
compensatory time off plan or arrangement. Neither extra compensation nor
compensatory time off will, under any circumstances, be owed or payable to an
exempt employee upon separation from the District's employ for any reason.

Non-Exempt Employees: Non-exempt employees are entitled to overtime pay
whenever theyperform overtime work. The District does not permit employees to
take time off in lieu of receiving overtime pay. Accordingly, employees should
not request the opportunity to make up time for time missed if the make-up time
will result in overtime work. Any time off that is scheduled or approved by an
employee's supervisor and is not covered by sick or vacation time will be time
without pay. See Policy 16 for information on Sick Leave Usage and Policy 18 for
information on Vacation Time.

5. Michelson Operations Center Hours

Because of the unique requirements of the seven-day/week operation of the District's
treatment plant, the work schedule andlor shifts of treatment plant personnel shall be
established from time to time by the Director of Wastewater Operations with the approval
of the General Manager.

6. Sick leave

Employees will accumulate sick time at the rate of 96 hours per year. Sick hours will be
charged according to the number of hours scheduled to work the day the employee is ill.

s\-r6



POLICY NO. 8. - SALARY

The ernployee will only be charged the actual number of hours taken as sick should he or
she leave work during the scheduled work day. (See Policy 16 - Sick Leave)

7. Vacation

Employees will accrue vacation hours according to their years of service with the District.
As with sick hours, vacation hours will be charged according to the number of hours the
employee is scheduled to work on that day. (See Policy 18 - Vacation)

8. Holidays

When an assigned holiday falls on a scheduled workday, the employee will be
automatically credited with the number of regular hours the employee was scheduled to
work that day. (See Policy No. 22 - Holidays).

Note: Temporary employees will not be credited with vacation time, but will receive
time off for the number of hours they would have been scheduled to work that
duy-

Any vacation leave derived from a holiday credit is vested from the first day of
employment.

9. SalaryAdministration

The District has adoptcd a salary administration policy for the compensation of
employees and to specify the conditions for increasing employees' salaries.

A. The Human Resources Department is responsible for the maintenancc ofjob
classifications, salary ranges, salary surveys, and administration of the salary
proglam.

B. Supervisors and Managers are responsible for administering the salaries of their
employees within the guidelines set forth in this policy.

C. All salary changes must be approved by the General Manager.

D. Salary Ranges

Each position is assigned a salary grade and each salary grade is assigned a

minimum and a maximum salary range. An exceptional rangc has been created for
exceptionally rated employees.

E. fliring Rate

The normal hiring rate will be within the first quartile of the established position's
salary range. Offers of employment above the second quartile require prior
approval of the Director of Human Resources and the General Manager.

The salary paid to temporary and regular part-time employees will comprise the
total compensation. Temporary employees are not eligible to participate in any
benefit program, with the exception of pro-rated holiday pay and workers'
compensation. However, regular part-time employees will receive pro-rated
vacation pay in addition to pro-rated holiday pay and workers' compensation.

ô417



POLICY NO. 8. . SALARY

Some temporary and regular part-time employees may be eligible for medical
benefits. (See Policy No. 7 - Temporary Employees).

Should the employee's status change from parttime andlor full-time temporary to
part-time andlor fuIl-time regular, the employee will be eligible for all applicable
District benefits. However, hire date, sick leave and vacation accrual will not be
retroactive to the date of original hire.

F. Merit Increases

Merit increases are granted in proportionate relation to an employee's
demonstrated job performance. Supervisors shall establish performance standards
and communicate these requirements to each of their subordinates. In addition,
Supervisors shall confer with each employee conceming performance according to
District policy. (See PolicyNo. 10 - Employee Performance Review).

1) Merit Guidelines:

The amount of each merit increase will be determined by the performance
of the employees as documented on his "Performance Review" form (See

Policy No. 10 - Employee Performance Review). The performance criteria
are as follows:

Ð Performance Ratings:

o Exceptional
o Exceeds Requirements
o Meets Requirements
o Needs Improvement
¡ Unsatisfactory

b) Definition of Performance Ratings

Exceptional: Performance far exceeds expectations for acceptable
performance of the individual. It represents a unique level of
performance and contribution to the organization.

Exceeds Requirements: Performance is consistently above
expectations established for the individual. It represents a high
level of proficiency in all job requirements.

Meets Requirements: Performance is generally acceptable and
satisfactory and meets expectations established of the individual. It
represents the level expected ofan experienced, qualified
employee.

Needs Improvement: Performance is often below expectations
established for the individual. It represents deficiency in at least

some job requirements.

Unsatisfaetory: Perforrnance is well under minimum
expectations established for the individual. It represents
unacceptable performance.

êsl8



POLICY NO. 8. - SALARY

2) Merit Increase and Change of Status Procedure

The Supervisor recommending a merit increase, promotion, transfer or
other change in status of an employee shall provide input to their
Department Head, who will prepare the appropriate paperwork. A Change
of Status worksheet (available at s:\F{uman Resources\Forms\COS
V/orksheets.xls) is used for promotions or transfers. Annual merit increase
worksheets are sent from the Human Resources Department to each
Department Head the month prior to an employee's anniversary date
through the on-line system. Department Heads shall submit their
recommendation of the merit increasc amount on these on-line forms. The
system will automatically calculate the merit increase based on the
employee's rating and quartile placement. The approved merit increase
table can be found at s:\Fluman Resources\CompensationWÍerit Increase
Table.xls. The Director of Human Resources an#ÉheGe*eral-*Can*ger
must approve the recommended merit increase amount to ensure
compliance with this salary admínistration policy. The approved change of
status form will be retumed to the Department Head for presentation to the
employee. Only then shall the change of status or salary be discussed with
the employee.

3) Promotion

A promotion is the assignment of an employee to a different position
classified in a higher salary grade.

a) Amount of Promotional Salary lncrease

The increase granted at the time ofpromotion shall be calculated
using the promotion formula established by the General Manager
as a guide. The formula will generally be followed except in those
instances where a higher increase is required to bring the
employee's salary to at least the minimum of the new salary grade

or an adjusted increase amount is appropriate to achieve intemal
equity within a department. The promotion formula is available at

s:\Fluman Resources\Compensation\ Promotion Formula.xls.

4) Transfers

A transfer is the assignment of an individual from one department to
another department within the District. Generally, transfers will not be
accompanied by a salary increase unless an employee had been scheduled
to receive a merit increase at the time of transfer.

5) Premium Pay

From time to time an employee may be requested to act in the capacity of a
higher level position for an extended period on a job assignment which is
clearly outside the normal job responsibilíties of his/her position. In these

d\-1e



POLICY NO.8.. SALARY

instances, the General Manager is authorized to approve temporary
monthly salary adjustments or "premium pay''to compensate the employee
during such assignments. Approval by the General Manager must be
received prior to the period during which premium pay will be paid.
Payment of the temporary prønium pay, less withholdings as required by
law, will be added to the employeeos pay during the normal payroll
processing.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources
Msrehg0gJuly 11. 2011

Date

Mar+h4.4009.Iu1v I l. 2011

DateGeneral Manager

#-20



1.

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 9 - OVERTIME PAY

General Policy

Employees may occasionally be asked to work beyond their normally scheduled hours.

When this occurs, supervisors should attempt to provide as much advance notice as

possible, however, such advance notice is not always possible. Non-exempt employees

who are required or permitted to work overtime will receive overtime pay in accordance

with the requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act, state laws, and the District's
compensation policies as follows:

A. All employees who are classified as "non-sxempt employees" as defined under the

Fair Labor Standards Act, will be eligible for overtime pay.All employees within
District Salary Grades I - XXXV fi,1!-:35Jü are "non-exempt" employees.

C.

Overtime is defined as that time spent on the job in excess of 40 hours in a
workweck.

Overtime will be computed at one and one-half (l-Il2) times the employce's

straight time hourly rate. Employees shall also be paid one and one-half (l-112)
times their straight time hourly rate for time worked on a District-approved
holiday in addition to their normally scheduled hours of holiday pay.

An employee must obtain his/her supervisor's approval prior to working overtime.

Under no circumstances will the District pay overtime to an employee on any day
that the employee has used sick or vacation hours, except in the case of an after
hours emergency response ol callout.

All employees who are classified as "exempt employees" as defined under the Fair
Labor Standards Act and California law and are within the District's Salary

Grades 1 -34 i1.E - 34.8), will not receive overtime compensation.

, Overtime Meals

Employees working greater than2 hours unplanned overtime immediately after

their scheduled workday or working 4 hours unplanned overtime are provided a

meal allowance. Unplanned overtime is overtime that is required with less than

twenty-four hours advance notice. An additional meal allowance is granted at 6-

hour intervals after the {irst allowance. The amount of the meai allowance is

established at the discretion of the General Manager.

Working conditions govern the actual time of eating the meal. Supervisor shall
make every attempt to provide an opportunity for employees working overtime to
have a meal within a reasonable time of when the meal is due.

B.

D.

E.

F.

A.

B.

ùt21



POLICY NO.9 - OVERTIME PAY

C. Employees qualifying for a meal allowance will be reimbursed for their expenses

on the following business day upon presentation of an expense receipt
accompanied by a completed petty cash receipt with the appropriate signatures.

D. Reimbursement will be made only for meal actually purchased and eaten.

3. Overtime Mileage

The District will reimburse employees for mileage when they are required to drive their
personal vehicle to work overtime on any scheduled day off. This overtime can be for an

emergency callout or scheduled work.

4. Standby Pay Policy

A. Because of emergencies and nature of the services provided by the District, it is
necessary to utilize "stand-by" or "call-out" personnel from time to time.
Department managers are responsible for setting forth authorit¡ regulations and
procedures relative to this type of overtime.

B. Minimum paid time for call-out shall be two (2) hours. Standby compensation pay
will be 3/4 of anhour overtime pay for every 8-hour period of non-business hours
the employee is on call. Based upon a normal one week standby duty rotation, this
equates to a total of 12 hours overtime pay an entire week.

C. Under no circumstance will the District pay standby to an employee on any day in
which the employee does not report to work due to illness or leaves work early
due to illness.

D. The Standby Pay Policy will be reviewed periodically and changes approved by
the General Manager, when necessary. The most current Standby Pay Policy is
available through the Human Resources Department.

5. @Policy

A. The District will provide in addition to
overtimepayeqËiM

accordine to the details outlined in-$ee
AWP 6 ferdetails-(s:\Safety\SWPManual\AWP_6.doc).

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources
Mareh4.4009July I 1. 201 I

Date

Mareþ9-2009Ju1f 1 1. 201 I
DateGeneral Manager

#t22



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 11 . HEALTII. VISION. DENTAL. ACCIDENT AND LIFE INSURANCE

1. General Policy

It is the policy of the District to provide employees with a group health insurance program
to enhance their job satisfaction.

2. Eligibility

Full-time regular employees are eligible for all goup health insurance benefits. Some
part-time regular and temporary employees may be eligible for medical benefits (See

Policy No. 7 - Temporary Employees).

3. Benefits Available

Full-time regular employees are eligible for hospital, surgical, medical, and major
medical insurance, dental, vision, and gret*plife insurance. Additionally, short term and

long term disability benefits are provided.

4. Benefit Cost

A, Hospital, surgical, medical and major medical benefit cost is borne in part by the
employee. The employee's contribution towards these benefits shall be established
from time to time by the Board of Dircctors and will be deducted from the
employee's paycheck.

B. Dental insurance coverage is provided by the District at no cost to employees.

C. G+euplife insurance coverage is provided by the District at minimal cost to

employees. Employees will eentribute-+sæailperee*r+agehêyg-i!çqrnq imputecl

based on the appropriate iRS Tax Table or schedule for life insurance amounts in
excess of$50,000 according to current federal and state tax schedules.

D. Short Term Disability insurance coverage is fully paid for by employees of the
District through an employee payroll tax. (see Policy No. 14 - Short Term
Disability).

E. Long Term Disability insurance coverage is provided by the District at no cost to
employees. (see Policy No. 13 - Long Term Disability)

5. Additional Benefits Available

Full-time regular employees are also eligible for additional insurance coverage offered by
various vendors. This insurance is optional and is completely paid for by employees
desiring such coverage through an ernployee payroll deduction.

ô-?3



POLICY NO. 11 . HEALTH, VISION, DENTAL ACCIDENT AND LIFE INSURANCE

6. Effective Date of Coverage

All District provided benefits, including those specified in this polic¡ become effective
for all eligible employees on the first day of the month following their hire date.

7. Administrative Responsibitity

The Human Resources Department will administer all District benefit programs, and will
furnish additional information to employees regarding available insurance programs.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources
Ìv{areþ9.4009Ju1y I 1. 201 I
Date

Mareh4J0e9,Iuly 1 l. 201 I
DateGeneral Manager

+224



1.

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 12 - WORKERS' COMPENSATION

General Policy

The District provides each employee with workers' compensation insurance coverage as
required by law to protect employees who are injured on the job. This insurance provides
medical, surgical and hospital treatment in addition to payment for loss of eamings that
result from work-related injuries. Al1 classes of employees, with the exception of contract
labor who are required by law to cany their own coverage, are eligible for workers'
compensation insurance with the District. Compensation payments begin from the first
day of an employee's hospitalization or after the third day following the injury if an
employee is not hospitalized. The cost of this coverage is paid completely by the District.

Procedure

When an employee is injured while working, helshe is required to report the injury to
his/her supervisor immediately, regardless of how minor the injury may be. The
supervisor is responsible for notif,zing the Ðistrie+-*safety DeparhnentA4anagcr and the
Human Resources Department as soon as possible after becoming aware of the injury.

Benefits

Workers'Compensation benefits are provided to employees who are injured on
the job or suffer illness caused by the job.

If an employee is directed by a worker's compensation carrier approved physician
to be absent from work as the result of injury or illness arising from District
emplo¡rment, the employee will be placed on workers' compensation leave of
absence. The employee will be required to provide the District with the doctor's
written instructions regarding absence from work Agd_LçlUglto*lgofk due to a
work related injury.

While on workers'compensation leave of absence, the employee shall be
compensated by the District for time absent from scheduled work for up to the
first three days ofabsence. Ifthe leave ofabsence extends beyond three calendar
days, the employee becomes eligible for workers'compensation benefits from the
District' s worker' s compensation carrier.

Employees must utilize accrued sick leave, until exhausted, to coordinate with
their worker's compensation benefit in order to collect their full salary.
Furthermore, accrued vacation must also be coordinated when sick leave is
exhausted.

2.

J.

B.

tAr25



POLICY NO. 12. }YORKERS' COMPENSATION

C. If medical treatment following the employee's return from leave of absence is
recommended by a worker's compensation carrier approved physician, the District
shall compensate the employee for time absent from scheduled work hours to
receive such treatment.

D. Should the employee's workers'compensation leave of absence extend beyond
ninety (90) days, the employee will be eligible for long term disability on the
ninety first (91st) day of his/trer absence (see Policy No. 13 - Long Term
Disability).

E. Workers' Compensation Leave of Absence is subject to the rules of Policy No. 19
- Leave ofAbsence governing leaves ofabsence.

F. The District's Workers' Compensation Policy will be administered by the Human
Resources Departrnent.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources
Januan¡ll-40l0Julv 1 1" 201 1

Date

JanuarIrl-{-J0+g¡rt"t t. ZOt t
DateGeneral Manager

1fu26



1.

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 13 . LONG TERM DISABILITY

General PolÍcy

The District provides most employees with goup long term disability insurance benefrts
that will help sustain them when they are disabled and cannot work. Short term disability
through the State of Califomia will provide benefits for the first ninety (90) days of a non-
occupational disability. This long term disability policy will take effect on the ninety-first
(91st) day, and continue as long as the employee is disabled. Additionall¡ long term
disability benefits are provided when an employee is disabled and cannot work because of
a work related disability and will take effect on the ninety-first (9lst) day. These benefìts
will be coordinated with the District's long term disability insurance carrier, and will
continue as long as the ernployee is disabled, subject to the limitations of the program.

Eligibilify

All regular full-time employees of the District are covered by long term disability
insurance under a group insurance plan funded entirely by the District. Employees
become eligible for insurance on the first day of the month following their hire date.

Benefits

The District's long term disability insurance plan will ensure that employees receive up to
66+U3% of their income to sustain them during periods of lengthy disabilities, subject to
the limitations of the program. Any other benefits being received, such as short term
disability, coordination of sick leave and/or vacation hours, etc., will be included in
calculating the total percentage of benefit.

Procedure

The Human Resources Department will monitor any short term disability leave of
absence to ensure that the necessary paperwork is initiated for long term disability
benefits to begin as soon as required. In any instance, Human Resources should be
notified immediately of any short term or long term disability leave of absence.

2.

J.

4.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources
Mav44-2008July I 1. 201 I
Date

Ma¡rtr}.9e08July 11. 2011

DateGeneral Manager

t#Q1



l.

IRVINE RANCH }YATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 14 - SHORT TERM DISABILITY

General Policy

The Califomia Unemployment Insurance Code (CUIC) states that a "disability" is any
illness or injury either physical or mental, that prevents an employee from doing regular
or customary work. Disability also includes elective surgery, pregnancy, childbirth, or
related medical conditions.

To protect employees who miss work due to a non-work-related disability, California
State Law requires that a small percentage of each employee's \ryages, up to the prevailing
maximum, be deducted each payperiod for disability insurance. There is a nonwaivable
seven day waiting period on all claims. Eligible employees will be paid a percentage of
their regular eamings for a maximum period provided by law in any one year. If an
employee is eligible for sick leave benefits, the District ma¡ry4ll!_coordinate accumulated
sick leave hours with State Disability income, to provide regular wages until the
accumulated sick leave hours are exhausted. In addition, accumulated vacation hours may
will be coordinated once sick leave hours are exhausted, until vacation hours are also
tully depleted.

Eligibility

All employees, (including part-time and temporary) of the District, with the exception of
contract laboç are covered by short term disability through the program offered by the
Califomia State Disability Insurance Fund, in accordance with the rules established by the
Fund.

Benefits

The Califomia State Disability Plan will pay benefits based on an employee's wages
received during a specific l2-month base period. This base period is based on the date a
claim begins, and only wages in this base period that were subject to the disability
insurance tax can be used to compute benefits. inæ

he base period is not necessarily the
last 1.2 months before an employee's claim begins. The State Disability Insurance Plan is
administered by the State of Califomia's Employrnent Development Department. As such,
the provisions and benefit schedule is subject to change according to State Law.

Benefit Cost

The cost of short term disability insurance is paid entirely by each employee of the
District through an employee payroll tax. The cost may vary from year to year.

Procedure

2.

3.

4.

5.

rA-28



POLICY NO. 14. SHORT TERM DISABILITY

The Human Resources Department should be notified immediately when there is a
possibility that an employee may be eligible for short-term disability benefits. Human
Resources is also responsible for providing information to District employees regarding
short-term disability benefi ts, regulations, restrictions, etc.

The State Disability Insurance Plan and Application/Claim forms are available from the
Human Resources Department.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources
Mareþ1-.-l995,Iuly 1 1. 201 1

Date

Mar#L-1995,Iu1v 1 l. 201 I
DateGeneral Manager

tf¡ze



1.

IRVINE RANCH \ryATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 16 - SICK LEAVE

General Policy

To minimize the economic hardships that mayresult from an unexpected short-term
illness or injury to an employee or to an employee's chi or legal
dependent, the District provides regular full-time employees with sick leave. Temporary
and part-time employees are not eligible for sick leave benefits.

The District reserves the right to require a satisfactory statement of a licensed physician
whenever an employee misses work due to an illness, injury or disability. The employee
may be asked to provide a physician's statement that verifïes the nature of an illness,
injury or disability, its beginning and ending dates, and/or the employee's ability to return
to work without endangering his/trer own safety or the safety of others. When requested,
such verifìcations and releases may be a condition to receiving sick leave benefits or
returning to work. Although a physician's statement normally will not be requested for
absences of less than three working days, the District may request such a statement in
situations where it determines it is warranted.

Accrual

Each regular full-time employee will accrue sick leave hours at the rate of 96 hours per
year; 8 hours per month of employment. This accrual begins with the first day of
employment, and is available for use as soon as hours are accrued.

Holiday Pay During Sick Leave

In the event that any paid District holiday occurs during a period when an employee is on
paid sick leave, the holiday will not be charged against the employee's accumulated sick
leave. (The only hours that will be charged against an employee's accumulated sick leave
will be those hours that the employee is regularly scheduled to work.)

Pregnancy/Maternþ Leave of Absence

The use of unused accumulated sick leave hours is allowed for pregnancy-related illness
or disability, just as it is for other illness (See Section 5 on next page and Family Care
Leave under Policy No. 19 - Leave of Absence).

Disabitity/MedicaVWorkers' Compensation
Leave of Absence

Whenanemployeebecomeseligib1efordisabilitybenefitsffiilr
or workers' compensation benefits*em-the€tate

@, the employeema¡pggg¡!_use accumulated sick leave hours
to supplement these payments. Accrued sick leave benefits will be used to supplement

J.

4.

5.

rA-30



6.

POLICY NO. 16 - SICK LEAVE

@r wWorkers'g€ompensation benefits onlyto the extent
necessary to provide a combination of these benefits and sick leave ffi
€€sp€nsatien-benefits equal to the employee's straight time compensation immediately
before the beginning of the illness, disability or injury.

Sick Leave Accrual During Leave

An ønployee on authorized leave of absence will continue to accrue sick leave hours at
the same rate of 96 hours per year, 8 hours per month, as long as accrued sick leave and
vacation hours have not been exhausted and provided the employee is utilizing accrued
benefits. Once accrued sick leave and vacation hours have been exhausted, or if an

employee elects not to coordinate benefìts while on a leave of absence, the employee will
cease to accrue sick leave hours until he/she refums to active employment status.

An employee on authorized leave of absence without pay, including extended military
leave of absence, extended sick leave, or temporary layofl will not accrue sick leave
during such absences. All unused accumulated sick leave accrued prior to the leave of
absence without pay or temporary layoff will remain in effect after the employee's return
to work.

Use of Sick Leave for Bereavement

An employee is permitted to use not more than five days of accrued sick leave per year
for bereavement. (See Policy No. 17 - Bereavement).

Sick Leave Added Days

The General Manager has the authority to loan, in writing, up to five (5) days of paid sick
leave to an employee providing that all accrued sick leave and vacation hours have been
exhausted. Unearned days ofpaid sick leave loaned to an employee must be repaid upon
return to work. In the event the employee terminates onployment prior to the complete
repayment of loaned sick leave days, the appropriate number of hours required for
repayment will be deducted from the employee's final paycheck.

Upon TerminationlRetirement

Upon voluntary termination of employment, the District will pay full-time regular
etnployees, fìfty (50) percent of the ønployee's accrued sick leave to a maximum of 960
hours, times the employee's current wage, providing the employee has worked for the
District for two years and has given the District two week's notice.

Upon the employee's death, payment will be made to his/her heirs. Employees whose
employment has been involuntarily terminated are not eligible to be compensated for
unused sick leave.

Annual Payoff of Unused Accumulated Sick Leave

An employee may elect to be paid for all or a portion of any unused sick leave accrued to
amaximum of 96 hours per year. A minimum balance of 40 hours must remain in each

t#:23r

7.

8.

9.

10.



11.

POLICY NO. 16 - SICK LEAVE

employeers sick leave account to protect the employee's income in the event of short term
disability.

A. Amount of Annual Payoff

If an employee elects to be paid for any unused accumulated sick leave under
provisions of paragraph 10, the number of hours elected will be deducted from the
balance of unused accrued sick leave hours. Payment will be made to the
employee in an amount equal to 50 percent (50%) of the hours elected to be paid,
times the employee's current wage rate. Such payment will be made to the
employee at the end of Novemb-et@ of each year.

B. Maximum Days of Payoff

An employce will be allowed to accrue an unlimited number of sick leave hours,
howevero payment of sick leave benefits pursuant to paragraph 9 of this policy is
limited to a maximum total of 50 percent (50%) of 960 hours of unused accrued
sick leave.

Sick Leave Donation Program

The Sick Leave Donation Program allows employees who have accrued sick leave hours
to voluntarily donate a portion of their accumulated hours to another employee who has

exhausted hislher accrued sick and vacation leave due to a non-work-related catastrophic
illness or injury of the employee or the catastrophic illness or injury of an employee's
dependent parent, spouse, or child requiring the presence of the employee.

Catastrophic illness or injury is defined as a severe illness or injury which totally
incapacitates a person for an extended period of time and is severely debilitating or life-
threatening. Illnesses such as cancer, heart attack, or stroke would be considered
catastrophic illnesses. Pregnancy and routine illnesses, surgical procedures, and injuries,
even those resulting in an extended leave ofabsence, do not qualify as catastrophic illness
or injury. The Director of Human Resources will be responsible for reviewing the
eligibility of an employee to receive donated sick leave and making a recommendation to
the General Manager for approval. The approval process may require appropriate medical
documentation regarding the illness or irry'ury of the employee or family member.

The decision to make a donation of sick leave to another employee through the Sick
Leave Donation Program is voluntary. No employee is to be coerced or intimidated into
making a donation of sick leave or to coerce or intimidate another employee. Donations
of sick leave may not involve any form of payment or compensation, financial or
otherwise, between the donor and recipient. The District will not solicit sick leave
donations on behalf of any qualifuing individual.

A. Eligibility

All regular, full-time employees who have completed their initial probationary
period are eligible to participate in the Sick Leave Donation Program as a donor
or recipient.

tà232



POLICY NO. 16 _ SICK LEAVE

B. Procedures for Utilizing Donated Sick Leave

In order to receive donated sick leave through the Sick Leave Donation
Program, an employee must meet the following requirements:

The employee must have been on an approved Leave of Absence for a
catastrophic illness or injury as defined above for at least 30 calendar
days prior to the use of any donated sick time.

The employee must have exhausted all of their sick and vacation
accruals prior to the use of any donated sick time.

The employee must be utilizing any applicable income replacement
programs for which he/she qualifies (i.e. State Disability Insurance,
Paid Family Leave, Long-Term Disability).

The employee must have notified the Human Resources department
of his/her desire to receive and utilize donated sick time. In the event
that the employee is physically or mentally unable to notiff the
Human Resources department, notification may be made by a member
of the employee's immediate family (i.e., spouse, domestic partner,
child or parent), by the employee's supervisor, or by an employee
wishing to make a sick leave donation.

An employee utilizing donated sick leave will not earn or be eligible to
accrue any sick or vacation leave. Once an employee ceases to receive any
portion of his/her pay from the use of his/her own accrued sick and

vacation leave, accrual of additional vacation and sick leave hours will
cease. Holidays falling during the period following exhaustion of vacation
and sick leave benefits will not be paid to an employee even if they are
utilizing donated sick leave.

If an employee returns to work on a part-time basis, sick and vacation
leave will begin accruing on a pro-rated basis and these accrued balances
will be utilized for coordination of benefits before the utilization of any
donated sick leave.

An employee utilizing donated sick leave will be taxed each pay period as

with the use of regularly accrued sick and vacation leave.

The existence or use of donated sick time is not a guarantee of continued
employment past the end of the approved leave of absence as detailed in
Policy No. 19 - Leave of Absence.

Procedures for Donating Sick Leave

l. An employee may complete a "Donation of Sick Leave'o form to donate
accrued sick leave in one-hour increments for use by another employee

1.

b.

d.

2.

3.

4.

5.

C.

l#f3



POLICY NO. 16 - SICK LEAVE

who has been determined to qualifu for sick leave donations under the
requirements listed above.

2. In no case shall a donation of sick leave reduce the donor's accrued sick
leave balance below eighty (80) hours.

3. An employee may donate a maximum of 25% of his/her sick balance or
forty (40) hours of accrued sick leave to an eligible employee, whichever
is less. No employee will be allowed to donate more than forty (a0) hours
of sick leave in any twelve month period.

4. The number of sick hours credited to the recipient will be calculated by
multiplying the number of hours donated by the calculated hourly rate of
the donor then dividing that amount by the calculated hourly rate of the
recipient.

5. Donated sick leave hours will be used to pay the recipient on a first in-
first out basis. Donated sick leave hours not used by the specified recipient
will be returned to the donating employee(s) following the end of the pay
period in which the recipient no longer qualifies for the use of donated
sick leave.

12. Administration of Policy

The Director of Human Resources and the Payroll Department will be responsible for the
administration and enforcement of this policy.

APPROVED:

Director of lfuman Resources Date

ru
General Manager Date

rês3a



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 18 - VACATION

1. General Policy

The District believes it is important for employees to take vacation leave on an annual
basis to enable them to take time off away from their job responsibilities in order to relax
and refresh themselves physically and mentally.

2. Eligibility

All regular fuIl-time employees are eligible for vacation leave. Regular part-time
employees are eligible for pro-rated vacation leave based upon the number of hours
worked. Only hours actually worked shall constitute service time in determining the
regular part-time ernployee's vacation accrual rafe.

Employees earn vacation leave hours from the first day of work, however, they are
ineligible to take time off for vacation leave during the first six (6) months of
employment.

3. Amount of Benefits

I fhe following schedule of vacation leave accrual per pafperie¿rnqlfth is applicable to all
regular full-time employees of the District:

I I,ess than 5 years service #46.67 hours - (Z-*eet<sSQ ¡qg¡S per year)

I Vtore than 5 years service 51Q.00 hours - (3-+eet<s12g ¡qurs per year)
but less than 10 years
(Beginning with the 5th year
anniversary date)

I Vtore than 10 years service æ13]3 hours - (q-$reelcsrcA ¡qqg per year)
(Beginning with the 1Oth year
anniversary date)

I Vacation hours will be accrued each palø period. Exceptions to this schedule of vacation
leave accrual may be made in the District's sole discretion. Exceptions to this policy will
be recommended by staff to the General Manager for approval.

4. Maximum Accrual

The maximum number of vacation hours accrued may not exceed the greater of 240 hours
or two times an employee's annual accrual. Employees with more than the allowed
maximum accrued vacation time at the time of the annual Vacation Transfer (see section
6 below) will be required to transfer all hours in excess of the allowed maximum accrual

l8- 1



POLICY NO. 18 _ VACATION

into their Defened Compensation Plan account. This transfer will be conducted once a

year and hours will be transferred at arate of 100% of the employee's current wage rate at

the time of transfer. Employees are responsible for ensuring that their vacation accrual
balance falls below the allowed maximum accrual if they do not wish to have vacation
hours automatically transferred to the Deferred Compensation Plan account.

If an employee's scheduled vacation is canceled at the District's request, or if extenuating
circumstances arise which require an employee to accrue vacation leave in excess of the
allowed maximum accrual, written approval may be granted by the General Manager to
carry over the excess hours for a specified period of time.

5. Ilolidays Falling During Yacation Leave

Established District holidays occurring during scheduled vacation leave are not counted
as vacation days.

Transfer of Vacation Hours

An employee may elect to transfer any vacation hours accrued in excess of 80 hours into
the employee's Deferred Compensation Plan account, provided the employee has used at
least 40 vacation hours during the preceding completed calendar year. This option will be
available to the employee once a year, generally in January, and hours will be transferred
at arate of 100% of the employee's current wage rate at the time of transfer.

Procedure for Requesting Vacation Leave

Requests for vacation leave shall be made in advance by the employee to his/her
immediate supervisor for appropriate approvals using the on-line Time Reporting Entry
system.

Termination

Upon termination from the District, employees shall be paid for unused accrued vacation
hours to the date of termination. These unused accrued vacation hours shall be paid at the
employee's current wage rate at the time of termination, regardless of the length of service
with the District.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources
Ma¡¡-l42008Julv I 1. 201 1

Date

Ma#?.40e8July 11. 2011
Date

7.

8.

General Manager

t8-2



1.

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 19 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE

General Policy

It is the District's policy to establish guidelines goveming leaves of absence to be granted

to all eligible employees. Leaves of absence will be considered in cases of medical
disabilities and certain health conditions and in cases of personal emergency, military
duty, jury dut¡ witness duty, bereavement, and family care. Unless specifically provided
otherwise, all leaves of absence are available only on an unpaid basis, for a period of time
not to exceed one hundred twenty (120) days. Should a leave ofabsence be approved past

one hundred twenty (120) days due to extenuating circumstances, the District reserves the

right to deactivate access codes to its buildings and computer systems.

Subject to any applicable legal restrictions, requests for leaves of absence will be
considered on the basis of the employee's lengfh of service, performance, responsibility
level, the reason for the request, and business necessity with respect to the employee's
position. If an employee accepts other employment or fails to retum to work on the next
regularly scheduled work day following the expiration of his/her leave, it will be

considered that the employee has voluntarily terminated his/her employment.

Eligibility

All regular full-time and regular part-time employees who have been employed by the
District for a period of one year arc eligible to request a leave of absence.

Rules Applicable to Specific Typcs of Leaves

A. Medical Leaves of Absence for Non-Occupational Disabilities

Requests for a medical leave of absence may be submitted by an eligible
employee who is temporarily disabled or unable to work due to a personal injury
illness, or serious health condition including a pregnancy-related disability.

Medical leaves of absence will be granted for the period of the illness, disability
or condition, provided such period shall not exceed four (4) months (120 days).

Employees who do not retum at the end of the maximum leave period because of
a recognized disability will not automatically be terminated at the end of the

maximum leave period, but may request and may receive an extension of their
leave as circumstances warrant. Medical leaves may be extended at the District's
discretion beyond four months with the written approval of the Director of Human

Resources and the Department Head.

Before retuming to work following a medical leave of absence, an employee must
submit a physician's statement indicating the employee's ability to retutn to work
and the date that he/she is able to retum.

2.

a

tAr37



POLICY 19-LEAVE OF ABSENCE

l) CoordÍnation of Benefits

All medical leaves of absence will coordinate unused accrued sick hours
with short-term disabilit¡ long-term disability, and any other wage-

replacement benefits for which the employee may be eligible in an effort
to minimize the financial impact of a leave of absence for both the

employee and the District. Once unused accrued sick leave hours are

exhausted, any unused accrued vacation hours shall be paid during a leave

of absence. Vacation pay shall also be coordinated with any short term
disabilit¡ long term disability or other wage replacement benefits for
which the employee may be eligible.

2) Accrual of Seniority and Benefits

Employees will continue to accrue vacation and sick leave benefits, as

well as holiday pay, as long as they are coordinating their benefits, and

receiving a portion of their pay from the District. Once an employee ceases

to receive any portion of his/trer pay from the District, (when all unused
accumulated vacation and sick hours are exhausted), accrual of additional
vacation and sick leave hours will cease. Holidays falling during the
period following exhaustion of vacation and sick leave benefits will not be

paid to an employee on unpaid leave of absence.

3) Procedure

It is the employee's responsibility to provide the Human Resources

Department with all the information as soon as he/she becomes aware of
the need for a leave of absence, (i.e., reason for leavqênsl anticipated dates

the leave will begin and end

).A
Request for Leave of Absence Form (available in the Human Resources

Department ) should be completed as soon as the employee becomes
aware of the need for a leave of absence.

The ønployee must also notify the Human Resources Department and

his/her supervisor if there is any change in the anticipated dates the leave

will begin and end.

4) Additional Benefits Affected

Additional benefits, such as group medical, dental and vision and life
insurance coverage will remain in force, and the employee will continue to
pay hisÆrer normal monthly premium for themselves, spouse and/or family
during the first four (4) months (120 days) of their leave of absence.

When an approved leave of absence for an eligible employee extends

beyond four (4) months (120 days), the employee is responsible for the full
cost of gloup medical, dental, vision and life insurance coverage for
themselves, spouse and/or family. These payments must be made to the
Human Resources Department on a timely basis each month.

14238



POLICY 19_LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Other benefits, such as voluntary life, Accidental Death &
Dismemberment (AD&D) coverage, deferred compensation contributions,
credit union deductions, United Way contributions and computer purchase

loan payments will continue to be deducted from an employee's
coordinated pay until sick leave hours and vacation hours have been
exhausted, and no further pay is due. Once all unused accrued sick and

vacation hours have been exhausted, or for leaves ofabsence extending
past four (4) months (120 days), the employee will be required to make

these payments in order to continue coverage or participation. These
payments must be made to the Human Resources Department on a timely
basis each month. However, each employee has the option to stop
contributions into their defened compensation accounts and credit union
accounts.

Employees who participate in the flexible benefits program for
miscellaneous medical expenses or dependent care expenses have the
following options when they are on a personal leave of absence.

(a) Discontinue the monthly payments into the flexible benefits
account. However, if this option is chosen, the employee may not
enroll in the flexible benefits program again until the following
calendar year.

(b) Continue the monthly payments. These payments shall be made to
the Human Resources on a timely basis. (See Policy No. 41 -
Flexible Advantage Program for more specific information on the

Flexible Benefits Program).

B. Medical Leaves of Absence for Occupational Disabilities

Leaves of absence are granted to any eligible employee who sustains a
work-related disability. A leave of absence for a work-related disability
shall be extended to the employee for the duration of the work-related
disability.

Before retuming to work following a leave of absence for a work-related
disability, an employee must submit a physician's statement indicating the

employee's ability to retum to work and the date that he/she is able to return.

1) Coordination of Benefits

A leave of absence for a work-related disability will coordinate unused

accumulated sick hours with workers' compensation insurance, long-term
disability, and any other benefits provided to the employee in an effort to
minimize the financial impact of the leave of absencc for both the

employee and the District. Once unused accumulated sick hours are

exhausted, any unused accrued vacation hours shall be paid during a leave

of absence, Vacation pay shall also be coordinated with any workers'
compensation insurance, long term disability or other wage rcplacement
benefits for which the employee may be eligible.

rA:39



POLICY 19 _ LEAVE OF' ABSENCE

2) Accrual of Seniority and Benefits

Employees will continue to accrue vacation and sick leave benefits, as

well as holiday pay, as long as they are coordinating their benefits, and

receiving a portion of their pay from the District. Once an employee ceases

to receive any portion of their pay from the District, (when all unused

accumulated vacation and sick hours are exhausted), accrual of additional
vacation and sick leavc hours will cease. Holidays falling during the
period following exhaustion of vacation and sick leavc benefits, will not
be paid to the employee on unpaid leave of absence.

Employees who are granted a leave of absence for a work-related disability
will continue seniority rights for the purpose of retirement benefits.

Procedure

It is the employee's responsibility to notifu his/trer superuisor immediately
upon any work-related injury. The supervisor will immediately notiff the

Human Resources, and refer the injured employee to the District's
contracted industrial clinic. The Supervisor will prepare a Supervisols
Report of Accident.

The Human Resources Department will send to the injured employee an

Employee's Claim for Workers' Compensation Benefits for his/her
completion. The District will file a claim with the workers'compensation
carrier, who will handle processing and payment of claims.

Additional Benefits Affected

Additional benefits, such as group medical, dental, vision and life
insurance coverage will remain in force, and the employee will continue to
pay his or her normal monthly payment for themselves, spouse and/or

family during the first four (4) months (120 days) of his/her leave of
absence.

When an approved leave of absence for an eligible employee extends

beyond four (4) months (120 days), the employee will be responsible for
the full cost of group medical, dental, vision and life insurance coverage

for themselves, spouse and/or family.

Other benefits, such as voluntary life, AD&D coverage, deferred

compensation contributions, credit union deductions, United Way
contributions and computer purchase loan pa¡rments will continue to be

deducted from an employee's coordinated pay until sick leave and vacation
hours have been exhausted, and no further pay is received.

Once all unused accumulated sick and vacation hours have been

exhausted, or for leaves of absence extending past four (4) months (120

days), the employee will be required to make these payments in order to

continue coverage or participation. These payments must be made to the

Human Resources Department in a timely manner.

3)

4)

1fu40



POLICY 19 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Those employees who participate in the flexible benefits program at the
District for miscellaneous medical expenses or dependent care expenses

have the following options when they are on a medical leave of absence
for occupational disabilities.

(a) Discontinue the monthly payments into the flexible benefits
account. However, if this option is chosen, the employee may not
enroll in the flexible benefits program again until the following
calendar year.

(b) Continuc the monthly payments. These pa¡rments shall be made to
the Human Resources Department on a timely basis. (See Policy
No. 41 - Flexible Advantage Plan for more specific information on
the Flexible Benefits Program).

5) Special Requirements for Occupational Disabilities

The District will retain employees on an extended leave of absence for
work-related disabilities until one of the following situations takes place:

(a) The employee is released for full or light duty.

(b) The District receives satisfactory medical evidence that the
employee is unable to retum to work.

(c) The employee resigns or actually or constructively informs the
District that heishe does not intend to return to the District's
employ.

6) Returning to Work from Occupational Disabilify

It is the employee's responsibility to notif,i the District when helshe is able
to return to work following an occupational disability. At that time, the
District will attempt to locate a comparable position for the retuming
employee.

C. Family Care Leave

Family care leave of up to twelve (12) work weeks in a twelve (12) month period
may be taken for the following reasons:

o Birth of a child of the employee; or placement of a child with an employee in
connection with the adoption or foster care of a child by the employee.

o Because of any qualiÛing exigency arising out of the fact that the spouse,
child, or parent of the employee is on active military duty in the Armed Forces
in support of a contingency opcration. A "qualiffing exigency''is defined as a

situation or pressing need calling for immediate attention.

o For a serious health condition of the employee which makes him/her unable to
perform his/herjob.

o For a serious health condition of a child of an employee.

t^s41



POLICY 19 _ LEAVE OF ABSENCE

. To care for a parent or spouse who has a serious health condition.

ooSerious health condition" is defined as an illness, injury, impairment, or
physical or mental condition which involves any of the following:

o In-patient care in a hospital, hospice or residential health care

facility;

r Continuing treatment or continuing supervision by a health care
provider; or

. Any period of incapacity requiring absence from work for more
than three days, which involves continuing treatment by a
health care provider.

Military family care leave of up to twenty-six (26) work weeks in a twelve (12)

month period may be taken for the following reasons:

o To care for a parent, spouse, child, or someone for whom the employee is next
of kin who is a member of the Armed Forces and who is undergoing medical
treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is otherwise in ouþatient status, or is
otherwise on the temporary disability retired list, for a serious illness or injury.

l) Eligibitity

Employees who have worked for the District for at least 12 months and

have providcd at least 1 250 hours of service during the precedi ng 12

months can request a family care leave of absence.

2) Coordination of Benefits

An employee requesting a family care leave of absence for his or her own
serious health condition must coordinate any unused accumulated sick and

vacation hours with short-term disabilit¡ long-term disability, and any
other wage-replacement benefits for which the employee may be eligible
in an effort to minimize the financial impact of the leave of absence for
both the employee and the District. An employee requestingafamily care

leave ofabsence for any other approved reason must coordinate any
unused vacation hours and ma¡ by agreement by IRWD, coordinate any

accumulated sick leave hours with paid family leave benefits or any other
wage-replacement benefits for which the employee may be eligible.

3) Accrual of Seniority and Benefìts

Employees will continue to accrue vacation and sick leave benefits, as

well as holiday pay, as long as they are receiving their pay from the
District. Once an employee ceases to receive any portion of their pay from
the District (when all unused accumulated vacation and sick hours are

exhausted), accrual of additional vacation and sick leave hours will cease.

Holidays falling during the period following exhaustion of vacation and

sick leave benefits will not be paid to the employee on unpaid leave of
absence.

t*42



POLICY 19 - LEAVE OT'ABSENCE

Employees who are granted a leave of absence will continue seniority
rights for the purpose of retirement benefits.

4') Procedure

It is the employee's responsibility to provide the Human Resources

Department all the information as soon as he/she becomes aware of the
need for a family care leave of absence (i.e., reason for the leave,a.nd

anticipated dates the leave will begin and end@

unpaic{eavecfabsenee) The District will ordinarily require medical
certification from a health care provider establishing the need for a family
care leave of absence for the serious health condition of the employee or
the employee's family mernber.

The employee must also notify the Human Resources Department and

his/her supervisor if there is any change in the anticipated dates the leave
will begin and end.

A Request for Leave of Absence Form (available in the Human Resources

Department) should be completed as soon as the onployee becomes aware

ofthe need for a leave ofabsence.

5) Additional Benefits Affected

Additional benefits, such as group medical, dental and vision and life
insurance coverage will remain in force, and the employee will continue to
payhis or her normal monthlypayment for themselves, spouse and/or
family during the first four (4) months (120 days) of their leave of absence.

Because family care leave of absence is only available for a maximum of
twelve (12) work weeks in a twelve (12) month period, the four (4) month
period during which such benefits remain in force would, in most cases,

expire only if the employee uses other approved leave in conjunction with
family care leave.

When an approved leave of absence for an eligible employee extends
beyond four (4) months (120 days), the employee will be responsible for
the full cost of group medical, dental, vision and life insurance coverage
for themselves, spouse and/or family

Other benefits, such as voluntary life, AD&D coverage, deferred
compensation contributions, credit union deductions, United Way
contributions and computerpurchase loan payments will continue to be

deducted from an employee's paycheck until sick leave and vacation hours
have been exhausted, and no further pay is received from the District.
Once all unused accumulated sick and vacation hours have been

exhausted, or for leaves of absence extending past four (4) months (120

days), the employee will be required to make these payments in order to
continue coverage or participation.

ß,j43



POLICY 19_LEAVE OF ABSENCE

These paynents will need to be made to the Human Resources Department

on a timely basis each month. However, each employee has the option to
stop contributions into their deferred compensation accounts and credit
union accounts at any time.

Those employees who participate in the flexible benefits program at the

District for miscellaneous medical expenses or dependent care expenses

have the following options when they are on a family care leave of
absence.

(a) Discontinue the monthly payments into their flexible benefits

account. Under FMLA regulations, employees returning from
FMLA who have discontinued payments into their flexible benefits

account have a right to elect to reinstate coverage at the same level
of participation as before their leave. If a Qualified Status Change

has occurred, they may elect to be reinstated at a different level of
participation. Expenses that are incurred during the time that
employees are not making monthly payments are not eligible for
reimbursement.

(b) Continue the monthly payments. These payments shall be

made to the Human Resources Department on a timelybasis.

(c) Employees that experience an event that qualifies as a Qualified
Status Change under IRS regulations are allowed to change the

amount of their monthly payments into either the miscellaneous

medical or dependent care flexible spending accounts. If this

option is chosen, employees have thirty (30) days from the date of
the qualified status change or from the date they return from
FMLA leave to change their payments. (See Policy No. 4l-
Flexible Advantage Progtam for more specific information on the

Flexible Benefits Program).

6) Coordinating Leave of Absence with Spouse

If the employee's spouse is also employed by IRWD, the District may
limit a family care leave of absence for the purpose of the birth, adoption,

or foster care placement of a child to allow a combined leave of twelve
(12) work weeks in a 12-month period.

7) Length of Leave

A family care leave of absence can be taken for a maximum of twelve (12)

workweeks during a rolling l2-month period measured backward from the

date an employee uses any FMLA leave.

D. Personal Leaves of Absence

All regular part-time and regular full-time employees who have been continuously
employed by the District for at least one year may request a personal leave of
absence for a reasonable period of time of up to 30 days. The leave may be

extended for a reasonable period of time due to special circumstances, as

t6a44



POLICY 19 _ LEAVE OF ABSENCE

determined on an individual basis by the Director of Human Resources and the

General Manager. Employees taking a personal leave of absence are required to

use any accrued vacation time during the leave. Any time taken off in excess of
accrued vacation time will be unpaid time off. Requests for leaves of absence will
be considered on the basis of the employee's length of service, performance,

responsibility level, the reason for the request, whether other individuals are

already out on leave, and the expected impact of the leave on the District.

1) Procedure

Eligible employees must submit a written personal leave of absence

request to their supervisor. Approval by the Department Head, Dircctor of
Human Resources and the General Manager is required prior to the

beginning of the leave.

It is the employee's responsibility to provide the Human Resources

Department all information as soon as he/she becomes aware of the need

for a leave of absence, (i.e., reason for leave, and anticipated dates the

leave will begin and end). A Request for Leave of Absence Form
(available in the Human Resources Department) shall be completed as

soon as the employee becomes aware of the need for a leave of absence.

2) Accrual of Seniority and BenefÏts

Employees who are granted a leave of absence will continue seniority
rights for the purpose of retirement benefits.

3) Additional Benefits Affected

Additional benefits, such as group medical, dental, vision and life
insurance coverage will remain in force as long as the employee continues

to pay his/her normal monthly payment for themselves, spouse andlot
family during any part of the 30-day personal leave of absence.

Other benefits, such as voluntary life, AD&D coverage, deferred

compensation contributions, credit union deductions, United Way
contributions and computer purchase loan payments may also be

continued. If the length of the leave exceeds accrued vacation time, the

employee will be required to make these payments while on unpaid time

off in order to continue coverage or participation. These payments must be

made to the Human Resources in a timely manner. However, each

employee has the option to stop contributions into his/her deferred

compensation accounts and credit union accounts.

Employees who participate in the flexible benefits program at the District
for miscellaneous medical expenses or dependent care expenses have the

following options when they are on a personal leave of absence for
occupational disabilities.

(a) Discontinue the monthly payments into the flexible benefits

account. However, if this option is chosen, the employee may not

tùc4s



POLICY 19 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE

enroll in the flexible benefits program again until the following
calendar year.

(b) Continue the monthly payments. If the length of the leave exceeds

accrued vacation time, the employee will be required to make these
payments while on unpaid time off in order to continue coverage or
participation. These payments shall be made to the Human
Resources on a timely basis. (See Policy 4l -Flexible Advantage
Plan Policy for more specific information on the Flexible Benefits
Program).

E. Military Leave and Jury/Witness Duty

Military and Jury/TVitness Duty Leaves of Absence are addressed in Policies 20
and2l respectively.

4, Leave of Absence Review Process

The District will not grant leaves of absence indiscriminately, and it is the policy of the
District to carefully review all requests for leaves to ensure each is in the best interest of
the District.

5. General Coordination Provision

It is the District's intent to administer its leave of absence policies in accordance with the
requirements of all applicable state and federal laws. Instances may exist where two or
more leave of absence policies potentially provide for overlapping leave for an eligible
employee. The District's general intent is to coordinate such leave, as allowed by law, so

that leave of absence that is taken by an employee under one policy, which could also
have been taken under any other policy, shall be credited against the maximum limit on
leaves established in each of the applicable policies.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources
Mareh9-4e09.lulv I l. 2011

Date

Mareh9-2009.Iuly 1 1. 201 1

DateGeneral Manager

rArd6



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO.23 . EDUCATION AND TRAINING

1. General Policy

The District encourages employees to seek further education and training in an effort to
increase their competency and efficiency in their work, and to increase personal
development. Knowledge in other work areas not directly related to an employee's job
may also allow for organizational cross training.

2. Purpose of Policy

The purpose of this policy and procedure is to establish the guidelines and criteria for
reimbursement for educational expenses and incentive pay for obtaining college and
university degrees and other approved professional certificates after being hired by the
District.

The District firmly believes that this policy will improve its ability to attract and retain
outstanding employees, supervisors and managers.

3. EligibÍlity

All regular full-time employees of the District who have been employed by the District
for six (6) consecutive months are eligible for education and training reimbursement.
lncentive pay for obtaining college and university degrees and approved professional
certificates is also available to these employecs. Educational reimbursement and incentive
pay for thc General Manager requires approval of the Board of Directors.

Requests for tuition reimbursement for classes taken above the Bachelor's degree level
require special approval by the General Manager. Such requests will be subject to a more
extensive process, including a costs/benefits analysis to determine the value to the
District of the proposed courses or degree program.

Only education and training completed on an employee's personal time is eligible for
reimbursement and incentive pay under this policy. Certifications and/or degrees
completed by attending classes or training during paid working hours are not eligible for
reimbursement andlor incentive pay under this policy.

4. ResponsibÍlity

The Human Resources Department is responsible for administering this policy and
ensuring compliance.

5. Education & Training Expenses

A. Education and Training Reimbursement

Employees are eligible for reimbursement for the expenses related to classes taken
in pursuit of a university or college degree program, an Occupational Program

2*47



POLICY NO. 23 - EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Certificate, or for professional or personal growth provided the following criteria
are met:

1) Classes must be taken at a college, university, or leaming institution
accredited by a commission approved by the Council on Higher Education
Accreditation andlor the U.S. Depafiment of Education or approved by the
District.

2) Eligible employees must complete an Application for Educational
Assistance Form (available in the Human Resources Department) at the
time of enrollment in the classes. On this form, the employee will outline
the curriculum and projected costs that will be involved. The application
must be approved by the employee's Department Director, the Director of
Human Resources and the General Manager. The original application will
be kept in the employee's personnel file.

3) An employee is required to achieve an average grade point sufficient to
enable completion of the curriculum in which he/she may be enrolled.
Once an employee has completed the course with a passing grade of "C" or
better, "Pass" or the equivalent, the District will reimburse up to seventy-
five percent (75%) of the tuition and textbook costs. If an employee is
eligible for Veteran's benefits, and such benefits are less thanT5o/o of the
total cost of tuition, books, and registration fees, the District will pay the
difference required to bring the total reimbursement to 75%. Maximum
reimbursement for tuition and registration costs will be based on state
college fees and approved by the General Manager on an annual basis.

4) Supplies required for particular courses may be considered for
reimbursement; however, parking fees are not reimbursable

5) Original grades and receipts must be submitted to the Human Resources
Department. Upon verification that the courses and expenses were
previously approved, Human Resources will submit a check request for
reimbursement of eligible expenses, less applicable taxes, to the employee.
If the employee has exceeded the IRS-approved non-taxable education
reimbursement amount, the amount of the reimbursement and the tax
deducted will be included on the W-2 form issued to the employee.

Contact Hours and ContÍnuing Education Units for Certificate of
Competence Renewals

1) Employees holding job-required Certificates of Competence arc required
to complete the contacts hours in order to renew their certifications. The
following rules establish District and employee responsibility for obtaining
job-required contact hours:

a. Employees are responsible for ensuring that all required contact hours
are completed in a timely manner.

b. Because no more than2lYo of required contact hour credit can be
obtained from attendance at District meetings such as safety tailgates,

B.

2fï48



POLICY NO.23 - EDUCATION AND TRA.INING

employees must obtain contact hour Continuing Education Units
(CEUs) for job-required certification renewals by attending seminars
or other means approved by the employee's supervisor or manager.

c. The District will pay for 100% of the cost of pre-approved seminars
for the purpose of obtained contact hour CEUs needed for job-required
Certificate of Competence renewals. These seminars should be
scheduled during an employee's normally scheduled working hours.

d. Under no circumstances will the District compensate an employee for
any penalties for late renewal or pay overtime for an employee to
attend a seminar outside of the normally scheduled working hours.

2) Employees holding non-job-required Certificates of Competence which
they desire to keep active are also required to complete the contacts hours
in order to renew their certifications. The following rules establish District
and employee responsibility for obtaining non-job-required contact hours:

a. Employees must complete an Application for Educational
Reimbursement Form (available in the Human Resources Department)
requesting District approval of seminars to be taken and detailing the
number of CEUs required for renewal of the non-job-required
Certificate of Competence.

i. This form must be subrnitted to the Director of Human
Resources for review and approval prior to the first seminar
being attended.

ii. The Director of Human Resources may discuss the potential
value to the District of the Certificate of Competence with the
employee, the employee's supervisor or manager, andlor other
department supervisors or managers to determine if the request
will be approved.

iii. If the request for Educational Assistance is denied, the
employee may pursue contact hour CEUs outside of District
working hours and will not be reimbursed for any of the
expenses related to obtaining CEUs or the renewal of the non-
job-required Certificate of Competence.

iv. if the request for Educational Assistance is approved, then the
points listed in B.l) a-d above apply.

6. Incentive Program

A. University and College Degrees

District employees obtaining a college degree through an accredited program shall
receive an incentive payment, less applicable taxes, in the amount set forth below,
provided the degree exceeds the minimum job rcquirements of the employee's
position. The degree must be job related, and/or provide a direct benefit to the
District.

2*4e



POLICY NO.23 - EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Desree Net Award

AA*
BA/BS
Masters **
Others

$ l,ooo
$ 1,000

$ 1,000

$ 1,000

f Sixty college level units from an accredited institution shall be equivalent to
an Associates (AA) degree.

t The District shall not compensate an employee a total of more than $1,000
for obtaining an Associates (AA) Degree and an Occupational Program
Certificate if the college units for which the employee akeady received an

Occupational Program Certificate incentive are used to obtain an Associates
(AA) degree, unless the employee completes at least 30 additional units in
obtaining the AA degree. If the employee completes at least 30 additional
units, he/she will be eligible for the full AA incentive payment.

** Approved by General Manager

Employees are responsible for submitting proof of Degree to the Human
Resources Department. The Director of Human Resources will review the Degree
to ensure compliance with this policy. If the Degree does complywith this policy,
an Educational Incentive Program Request for Incentive Disbursement form will
be completed and routed for signatures by the appropriate parties, including the
General Manager. The incentive check will be forwarded to the appropriate
Department Director to be presented to the employee to recognize hislher
accomplishment.

The cash incentive payment, less applicable taxes, will be made payable to the
employee. The amount of the award and the tax deducted will be included on the
W-2 form issued to the employee.

B. Job-Related or Required Certificates of Competence

District employees shall receive an incentive cash payment in the amount of $750
for obtaining each Certificate of Competence listed below, provided the certificate
meets the following criteria:

1) Certificate of Competence exceeds the minimum job requirements
established for the employee's position. Under no circumstances shall an

employee receive an incentive for obtaining a Grade I or entry level
Certificate other than the Engineering in Training or Water Distribution
Operator I Certificates, unless approved by the Director of Human
Resources and the General Manager.

2) Certificate of Competence is job-related or required or provides employee
with valuable skills or knowledge for current or potential positions
employee may hold within the District. All requests for certification
incentives must be approved by the Director of Human Resources, as well
as the employee's supervisor, manager, or department director. Employees
who plan on pursuing a Certificate of Competence that is not directly

z{aso



POLICY NO. 23 . EDUCATION AND TRAINING

related to their current position should verify with the Director of Human
Resources whether the certification will qualiff for an incentive prior to
beginning the certification process.

3) Certificate of Competence is issued by the certifuing agency or
or ganization listed belo w.

Certificates of Competence Covered Under This Policy Include:

¡ Collection System Maintenance issued by CWEA
o Industrial Waste Inspection issued by CWEA
¡ Laboratory Technology or Laboratory Analyst issued by CWEA or AWWA
¡ Mechanical Technology issued by CWEA
o Electrical/Instrumentation Technology issued by CWEA
r Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator issued by SWRCB
o Water Treatment Plant Operator issued CA DPH
o Water Distribution Operator issued by CA DPH
r Engineer in Training issued by the State of California
o Registered Professional Engineer issued by the State of Califomia
o Certified Public Accountant (CPA) issued by the State of California
r Certified Purchasing Manager issued by National Assn. of Purchasing

Management
o Accredited Purchasing Professional issued by National Assn. of

Purchasing Management
¡ Certified Payroll Professional issued by American Payroll Assn.
o Fundamental Payroll Certification issued by American Payroll Assn.
o Concrete Field Test Technician by American Concrete Institute
o Concrete Construction Special Inspector by American Concrete

Institute
o Other Certificates of Competence approved by the Ceneral Manager

The District shall compensate the ønployee for the initial fee for Certification and

renewal but will not compensate the employee for any penalties for renewal or
provide an incentive payment to employees required to pass an examination for
Certification renewal.

Any employee who is permitted to and successfully passes a higher grade

certification test by skipping a lower grade will be compensated for the grade(s)

skipped, as well as the grade achieved.

Employees requesting incentive payment for any Certificate of Competence that
has an expiration date and requires contact hours and/or CEU's for renewal must
commit to keeping the certiflrcation active in order to receive the incentive
payment. Employees are responsible for submitting proof of Certification of
Competence and Request for lncentive/Commitment to Renew Form to the
Human Resources department. The Director of Human Resources will review the
Certification to ensure compliance with this policy. If the Certification does

comply with this policy, an Educational Incentive Program Request for Incentive
Disbursement form will be completed and routed for signatures to the appropriate
parties, including the General Manager. The incentive check will be fbrwarded to

2+ss1



POLICY NO, 23 - EDUCATION AND TRAINING

the appropriate Department Director to be presented to the employee to recognize
his/her accomplishment.

The cash incentive payrnent, less applicable taxes, will be made payable to the

employee. The amount of the award and the tax deducted will be included on the
W-2 fonn issued to the employee.

C. Occupational Program Certifïcates

District employees shall receive an incentive cash payment in the amount of $750
for each of the Occupational Program Certificates listed below which meets the

following criteria:

1) Occupational Program Certificate is job-related or provides employee with
valuable skills or knowledge for current or potential positions employee
may hold within the District. All requests for Occupational Certification
incentives must be approved by the Director of Human Resources, as well
as the employee's supervisor, manager, or department director. Employees
who plan on pursuing an Occupational Program Certificate that is not
directly related to their current position should verifu with the Director of
Human Resources whether the certification will qualifu for an incentive
prior to beginning the certification process.

2) Occupational Program Certification must be offered through an accredited
college or university.

3) Occupational Program Certificate requires the completion of at least 15

units of college class work. Under no circumstances will the District
provide an incentive payment for an Occupational Program Certi{icate
which includes credit from classes for which the employee has already
received an incentive payment unless the employee was required to take at

least 15 additional units to receive the subsequent ccrtification.

Occupational Prosram Certificates Covered Under This Policv
Include:

o Accounting
o Architecture
o AutoMechanics/Technology
o Finance
o Business Management
o Human Resources Management
o Chemical Technology
o Computer and Information Science
r ConstructionTechnology
o Building Construction
o Constructionlnspection
o ConstructionManagement
¡ Drafting Technology
o Electrical or Electronic Technology
o Engineering

z*as2



POLICY NO. 23 . EDUCATION AND TRAINING

. Heavy Equipment Maintenance and Repair
o Chemistry
o OmamentalHorticulture
o Surveyrng Technology
o Welding Technology
r Business Applications & Technology
o Management
o Public Works
o Project Management
¡ Business Analyst
o Contract Management
¡ Environmental Management
o Occupational Safety & Health
o FacilitiesManagement
o Water Distribution
o Water Treatment
o WastewaterSanitation
o Water Utility Supervisor
o Other Occupational Program Certificates approved by the General

Manager

Employees are responsible for submitting proof of having received an

Occupational Program Certification to the Human Resources department. The
Director of Human Resources will review the Certification to ensure compliance
with this policy. If the Certification does comply with this policy, an Educational
Incentive Program Request for Incentive Disbursement form will be completed
and routed for signatures by the appropriate parties, including the General
Manager. The incentive check will be forwarded to the appropriate Department
Director to be presented to the employee to recognize his/her accomplishment.

The District shall not compensate an employee a total of more than $1,000 for
obtaining an Associates (AA) Degree and an Occupational Program Certificate if
the college units for which the employee already received an Occupational
Program Certificate incentive are used to obtain the Associates (AA) degree,

unless the employee completes at least 30 additional units in obtaining the AA
degree. If the employee completes at least 30 additional units, he/she will be
eligible for the full AA incentive payment.

The cash incentive payment, less applicable taxes, will be made payable to the
employee. The amount of the award and the tax deducted will be included on the
W-2 form issued to the employee.

7, SpecÍal Conditions

A. Registered Professional Engineers shall not be eligible for certification incentive
for water treatment.

B. Incentive Compensation shall be paid only to individuals where Certificates
andlor Degrees exceed job level requirements (see position job description).

zilis3



POLICY NO. 23 . EDUCATION AND TRAINING

C. No more than two incentive payments shall be made for certifìcates and/or
degrees earned in any one fiscal year.

D. College or University Degrees and Occupational Program Certifications must be
obtained through an accredited program from an accredited educational
institution, successfully completed þassed) on the basis of school standards.

E. In no case shall an employee receive an incentive payment for obtaininq an an

Associate or Bachelors Deeree unless the emplovee completes at least 24 college
level semester units toward the depree while beinLemployed at the District.
unless approved in advance by the General Manager.

BE. In no case shall an employee receive an incentive payment for obtaining more
than one Associate, Bachelors or Masters Degree unless the employee completes
an additional24 college level semester units toward the additional degree while
being employed at the District.

G. ln no case shall an emplovee receive an incentive payment for obtaining an

Occupational Program Certiflrcate unless the ernployee completes at least 15

colleee level semester units toward the certificate while being employed at the
District. unless approved in advance by the General Manager.

The employee must be an employee of the District at the time that compensation
is to be made.

All Degrees, Occupational Program Certificates, and Certifìcates of Competence
not covered in section 2 must receive prior approval from the General Manager.

APPROVED:

Director of lluman Resources
Mar*9.4009Ju1y I 1. 201 I
Date

Mar#9'4e09July I 1. 201 I
DateGeneral Manager

Fg.

GI.

zlrëa



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 32 . SAFETY INESNTIVE/SERVICE A\ryARD PROGIL{M

1. General Policy

The District has established an ineentiveaward program to recognize an employee's
service to the District

2. Service Recognition Awards

Employees of the District will be awarded service pins at intervals of five years of
service. Additionally, service award certificates are presented to ønployees at the same

service pin award ceremony. In addition, a gift not to exceed $250 in value will be
presented to each employee achieving the milestone of 25 years of service and each 5

years milestone thereafter.

Psi+ts arvarded for Safe Werker eredit are based en thentrnber of rnenths ef
i+
perio+

It shenld be neted that seme Ðistriet pesitiens have a greater expesr¡re te irdtry

varieus eeeupatienal elasses, These faeters ehange frem time to time to refleet the
nistriet' s ernpleyees' injury

in

n- Vehiele¡gqu¡pmæ

F,tnpleyees are awffd€d itl

Employees wíll be reeognized for rninimal siek leave usage, The totel number of

rAr55



I roucv No.32 - s+FETy H\[esNTIvF/sERvIcE AwARD pRocRAM

Ming

Erpleyees will be awarded peints whieh refleet their anrual psferrranee rating,

The Safety Serviee l\ward points eaffred are eredited teward awards ari empleyee

----4gÉæ+Leveh

Sofety-Serviee Ðo[ar
.{ward Pefolts Value

s0 $s0
75 975

175 $ r75

zzs gz25

27s $27s

3Æ 1 37s

42s g42s

47s $47s
50O $ 500 (Ma¡iimr*m)
515 andabeve $ 500

will eentinnete aeeumulate peints eaeh year and will reeeive an award fer eaelr yeatin
whieh helshereaehes the next 25 -einFlevel. Fer example; aû ernpleyee who eaffies
ørwar¿ Sgg pei*s must aeewnul*

ztz56



POLICY NO. 32 . WERYICE A}VARD PROGRAM

4. AdmlntstrativeRosponsibtlity

The Human Resources Department will be responsible for administerÍng the Safeff
heæti+e¿néService Recognition Award Program.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources
Maya*2008July 11.2011
Date

M .a¡r*4.2008Ju1v I 1. 2011
D¡teGeneral Manager

3Æ57



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO.33 - INJURY AND- ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM

1. General Policy

The District, in addition to complying with all provisions of the CaI-OSHA section 3203
of the Califomia Occupational Safety and Health Act, will do all within its resources to
provide a saf'e and healthful work environment for every employee.

2. Purpose of the Policy

The purpose of the Injury and lllness Prevention Program is to:

A. State District policy on the issue of Injury and Illness Prevention.

B. Assign responsibility for the implementation and continuation of the Program.

C. Establish Safety Committees.

D. Establish procedures for reporting workplacehazards and accidents,

E. Set guidelines and procedures for non-compliance with the Injury and Illness
Prevention Program.

3. District Responsibility

The District will not require any employee to work in an unsafe area or in an unsafe
manner. The necessary training, tools, and equipment will be provided by the District to
do a job safely. The District will establish rules and regulations and the necessary medical
testing to ensure compliance with safety regulations. The District will discipline any
employee who has been found in violation of District safe work practices or CaI-OSHA
regulations. (See Policy No. 6 - Hiring and Termination).

4. Safety & Security Office Responsibility

The Safety & Security Office is responsible for promoting a safe and healthful work
environment for all ernployees. In accordance with SWP-12, the Safety & Security Office
is responsible for investigating and documenting occupational incidents (occupational
incidents include personal injuries and illnesses, property damage, vehicle accidents and
near misses), maintaining records of corrective actions taken and providing and
documenting safety and health training. Detailed records will be maintained as required
by regulations and will include names, dates, and actions taken. Documentation regarding
disciplinary action will be maintained by Human Resources.

5. Managers and Supervisors Responsibility

3êrs8



POLICY NO.33 - INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM

Safe working conditions and a safe work environment are the responsibility of every
employee; however, final responsibility for an accident free and hazard free environment
rests with the managers and supervisors of the District. Each managçr and supervisor has

the responsibility to promote accident prevention through continuous surveys of work
areas, setting a good example, educating, training and retraining employees regarding
safety rules and regulations and safe work habits. This will be achieved by recognizing
employees who follow safe and healthful work practices and by properly disciplining
employees working in an unsafe manner. Each manager and supervisor is responsible for
insuring that inspections are conducted and corrective actions are implemented. Safety is
a very important aspect of every Manager's and Supervisor's job.

6. Employee ResponsibÍlity

All employees of the District shall be required, as a condition of their employment, to
follow all Injury and Illness Prevention practices that are established for the protection of
themselves, their fellow employees and the public. This includes, but is not limited to
wearing of protective equipment and operating only that machinery or power equipment
that he/she has been authorized to operate. Any employee who willfully violates safe and
healthful work practices is subject to disciplinary action up to and inciuding immediate
termination (See Policy No. ó - Hiring and Termination).

It is the responsibility of every employee to report unsafe working conditions or an
employee working in an unsafe manner to his/her supervisor immediately for corrective
action. An employee who chooses not to report unsafe working conditions or cmployees
may be considered in violation of the Injury and Illness Prevention Policy of the District.

7. Communications

The District has established a system for communication between management and
employees on occupational safety and health matters, including meetings, training
programs, postings, written procedures, a system of anonymous notification and safety
committees. Several of these include:

Reporting Unsafe Conditions

Employees are required to report unsafe or unhealthful conditions to their
supervisor. Such reporting will be made without fear of reprisal. Supervisory
personnel will investigate and take necessary actions to remedy the situation in a
timely manner. These actions, regardless of the level of severit¡ will be reported
to the Safety & Security Office as soon as possible. (See Safe Work Practice
(SWP) - 12 Accident, Injury Illness and Near-Miss Investigation Procedure).

Employee Safety "Hotline"

The Employee Health and Safety Telephone Notification Hotline ("Hotline")
provides a confidential mechanism for employees to report concerns regarding
possible unsafe conditions or practices. This method of reporting unsafe
conditions is confidential and provides anonyrnity for callers (See SWP-7 -
Employee Health and Safety Telephone Notification "Hotline" Procedure).

3fuse

A.



POLICY NO.33 - INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM

C. Accident/Incident Notification

Incidents that involve employee accidents, incidents or near misses shall be
reported to the appropriate supervisor. Reports will then be forwarded to the
Safety & Security Office prior to leaving work at the end of the shift. (See SWP -

12- Accident, Injury, Illness and Near-Miss Investigation Procedure).

D. General Safety Committee

The General Safety Committee provides assistance in monitoring and reviewing
incidents, . The committee also assists the Safety & Security Office in the initial
development of safety-related procedures as required. Minutes of the General
Safety Committee are posted on the S-Drive. Members of the committee will
include employees from all major departments and/or members of the Safety &
Security Office. (See SWP-6 - Safety Committees Procedure).

8. Training and Information

The Safety & Security Office shall administer this Program, including:

A. Instructing employees, including supervisors, in safe work practices and
providing specific instruction as to hazards for particular positions;

B. Assisting supervisors in providing training and preparing job safety
analysis (JSA) for all employees.

1) V/hen ønployees are given new job assignments for which training
has not previously bcen received (See SWP-I1- Employee Health
and Safety Orientation Procedure),

2) Whenever new hazardous substances, processes, procedures or
equipment are introduced into the worþlace, and

3) Whenever the District is made aware of a new or previously
unrecognizedhazard.

C. Annual and Refresher Training

Employees must attend annual and refresher training for certain job duties as

described in applicable safety programs and procedures. (See SWP - 10

Training). As appropriate, a written test will be administered to evaluate
comprehension.

9. Injury or Hazard Reporting

A. VehÍcle Accidents

3fu60



POLICY NO.33 . INJURY A¡ID ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM

Any employee involved in a vehicle accident while operating a District vehicle
will report such accident by radio or telephone to the Vehicle/Equipment
Maintenance Manager before leaving the scene of the accident. (See HR Policy 50

Vehicle and Equipment Usage and SWP-19 Use of District Vehicles) The IRWD
Incident Report will be completed by the employee involved in the accident prior
to leaving work at the end of the shift. The employee's supervisor or manager will
submit the completed Incident Report to the Safety & Security Office prior to the
end of the shift.

B. Reporting InjurÍes/Illnesses

Any employee who sustains an illness or injury while performing hisiher job at
the District will report that illness or injury immediately to his/her direct
supervisor. The Supervisor of the injured employee will complete the IRWD
Incident Report on the day the illness or injury occurs before the employee leaves

District facilities, except in cases of emergency. Any employee who is aware of
any worþlacehazard must immediately report the hazard to hislher supovisor,
who is responsible for reportingthehazardto the Safety & Security Office.

The IRWD Incident Report will be forwarded to the Safety & Security Office by
the Supervisor before the end of the workday on the day of the accident. The
Safety & Security Office will forward a copy of the IRWD lncident Report to the
Human Resources department prior to leaving work at the end of the shift.

10. Safetv Inspections

Superyisors are responsible for indentiqrin&unsafe or unhealthful conditions in
accordance with SWP-13 Physical Conditions Inspections.

Conection of Unsafe or Unhealthful Conditíons

Supervisors are responsible for correcting safety and health hazards in a timely manner. If
such corrective action is beyond the supervisor's authority, then he/she must promptly
notiff management, or designee, with the authority to correct the hazard.

When an imminenthazañ, exists that cannot be immediately abated without endangering
employees and/or property, all personnel must be immediately evacuated from the area

except for personnel necessary to correct the hazardous condition. No employees may
enter such an area without appropriate protective equipment and training. The Safety &
Security Office will be notified as soon as possible.

Injury/Illness and Hazard Investigation

Occupational injury and illness, as well as hazards, will be investigated by the immediate
supøvisor and a representative from the Safety & Security Office. (See SWP 12 -
Accident, Iryury, Illness and Near-Miss Investigation Procedure).

Safety Warnings/Discipline Policy

¡S-a61

10.

11.

12.



POLICY NO.33 - INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM

Safety warnings and the disciplinary process guidelines are designed to give direction and
guidelines to be followed when an employee is determined to have been working in an
unsafe manner or has violated a safety regulation. This policy is designed to impress upon
all employees the need to exercise utmost caution in preventing injuries to themselves or
others and/or in causing property damage. (See s:VIuman Resources\Procedures\
Disciplinary Process.doc)

When an on-the-job accident/incident occurs, it shall be reviewed by the Safety &
Security Office. If the Safety & Security Office determines that an unsafe act, failure to
follow prescribed safety procedures, a safety violation, or gross negligence caused the
accident, the employee involved shall be subject to disciplinary action. (See Policy No. 6
- Hiring and Termination and Policy No. 27 - Alcohol and Drug Policy).

13. Administrative Responsibility

The Safety Officer, the Director of Human Resourccs and the General Manager will be
responsible for implementing and administering the Injury and Illness Prevention
Program of the District.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources

May 12,2008

-*---Tãte

May 12,2008

-TãteGeneral Manager

3*62



IRVINE RANCH \ryATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO.34 . EMPLOYEE PERSONAL COMPUTER PURCHASE PLAN

1. Purpose of Policy

The primary purpose of the Employee Personal Computer Purchase Plan is to develop the
computer literacy of full+ime District employees by encouraging the purchase and use of
home computers and software.

2. Eligibility

Any full-time employee who has completed one year of service with the District is
eligible for a loan under this program. Participants must agree, in writing, to comply with
the requirements and provisions of the plan.

3. Loan Criteria

Each loan is interest free with repayment calculated over twenty-four (24) month period.

A maximum of $3,000 will be loaned to eligible employees for initial purchase and/or
upgrades for personal computer systems determined to be compatible with current
District systems.

At no time shall an employee have active computer loans in repayment status for a
combination of more than one laptop or tablet computer and one desktop computer
svstem.

Loan payments will be made through s€mi+enthlËpayroll deductions. Personal
computer loan payments for loans over $500 will be determined by spreadin&the amount
financed over a period of 24 m
menths)+Computer loan payments for loans of $500 or less will be determined by
spreading the amount financed over a period of 12 months@
payaerieds{{3*enths)' Loans are due and payable in full upon termination of
employment for any reason. Balance due at termination will be automatically deducted
from the employee's final pavcheck and/or payment of accrued sick and vacation hours.
Loans may be paid earlier at the employee's request.

A written loan agreement between the District and the participant is required. The loan
agreement will outline the responsibilities of the participant, terms of the agreement,
payroll deduction anangements and other conditions of the loan.

4. Computer System Criteria

The following are minimum requirements of computer systems eligible under this
program:

A. One (1) business application software package. i.e. Microsoft Office. Word and
Excel.

34-1



5.

POLICY NO.34. EMPLOYEE PERSONAL COMPUTER PURCHASE PLAN

¿tpptieatiens,*lt

gperatingSæte*

ive.

@

eunent Bistriet app

To be eligible for this program, system components must be manufactured by
established companies and must be compatible to run current District software.
No off brands, discontinued models or used components will be considered. No
game or entertainment software or digital cameras will qualify under this plan.

Plan Limitations

Computer loans will be made to employees on a first-come, first-serve basis, until
the $150,000loan fund is depleted. As funds become available through loan
repayment, additional loans will be processed.

6. Procedure to Apply for Loan

Employees who wish to participate in the computer purchase plan will:

A. Obtain and complete a Computer Purchase Plan loan application from Human
Resources. Sign the Loan Agreement sheet (forms available in the Human
Resources Department).

B. Submit a receipt with s)¡stem specifications for a system purchased directly from a

vendor. If the system does not meet the minimum requirements established by this
policy. it will not qualify for loan funds. Employees ma)¡ also €qbtain a

C.

quotation(s) from vendor(s) for the hardware and software to be covered by the
program. Participants may choose any vendor. Comparative shopping is
encouraged. e'mpleyees may alsew

i*ne tystem ¿ees ne

IÊ+quetatien is ebt
ien

Human Resources will forward the loan agreement to the Finance Department,
where warrant(s) will be prepared. Warrant(s) will be delivered to the Human
Resources Department. If the employee has already purchased the system,
warrant(s) will be issued for 907o of the purchase price in the name of the

Ðc.

34-2



POLICYNO.34 - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL COMPUTERPURCHASE PLAIÍ

Each participant in the plan agrees that usage of the equipment and software made

available under this plan will be restricted to the participant's own use and that of hisltrer
immediate family. Any re-assignment or transfer of the equipment violates the agreement

and cancels the right to participate in the plan.

8. Protection Against Damage and Theft

Participants in the plan should ensure that their home insurance policy provides adequate

protection of their equipment from theft, fìre, flood and lightning. The District does not
assume any liability for damage or theft of equipment.

9. Loan Agreement Approval

The General Manager or his/trer designee shall approve all loan agreements.

10. AdministratÍveResponsibility

The Human Resources Department will be responsible for administering the Employee

Personal Computer Purchase Plan.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources

Mar#9.4009Ju1y 1 l. 201 I

Date

Mareh93009.Iuly 1 1. 201 I
DateGeneral Manager

34i65



t

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO.39 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN POLICY

Purpose of Policy

The primary purpose of the District's deferred compensation progrcm is to enable
employees to defer portions of their compensation as a supplement to the PERS
retirement plan. The District has established a deferred compensation program available
through two plans:

o IRS Section 457 Defemed Compensation Plan ("457 Plan")

¡ IRS Section 401(a) Money Purchase Pension Plan ("401(a) Plan")

Etigibitity and Enrollment

Upon empioyment with the District, all regular, full+irne employees ofthe District are
eligible to defer compensation to the 457 Plan. Employees are responsible for initiating
the dollar amount er percentage to be deferred, selectinq investment allocation of
amounts defen ed, and designating prirnary and contingent beneficiaries. I[ an employee
fails to allocate defen'als, the funds will be automatically deposited into a$xcrl-¡**tal*e
vaiuetb9legl1lelvajil,e_Ilo,Els find.

Additionally, in accordance with Personnel Policy No. 7, pertaining to the OBRA Act of
1986, some temporary employees ale required to contribute to the 457 PIan. Temporary
employees are limited to a4xedthg_-C_q$çtyalr_vc"!:sûie_funcl or stable value investment
option. (See "Policy No. 7 - Temporary Employees").

Employees may defer compensation for any calendar month, providing the defenal
election is made befe+e+he4¡strdây hy the2fl{aggf ttt"",oS-o"t! Utfþi9t*þgþ¡qltte--
cornpensation is paid or made available.

3. Available Plans and Deferral Limitations

A. The 457 Deferred Compensation Plan - Employee Contributions

The 457 plan is available for employee contributions only,

The minimum amount of contributions is ten doliars ($10.00) per pay period.

The rnaximu¡n amount employees may contribute to the 457 Plan is the lesser of
100% of Includible Compensation or the maximum allowed by law. Includible
Compensation is defined as base compensation. Includible Compensation does
not include overtime, stand-by, and unpaid absences such as medical leâve.

{r-"rg¡g"di!yi9'siql--- 

-J

A-66



POLICY NO. 39 - DEFERRED COMPENSAT¡ON PROGRAM POLICY

Once a year, the District will provide employees the option to transfer a specified
amount of accrued vacation time into the 457 Plan (See "Policy No. l8 -
Vacation').

Once a year, the District will providc cmployccs thc option to transfcr a specified
amount of accrued sick time into the 457 Plan (See "Policy No, l6 - Sick
Lcavc").

B. The 401 (a) Money Purchase Penslon Pl¡n - District Contributions

The 401 (a) Plan is for District contributions only.

Matchlng Contrlbutlons
An employee who has completed one year of regular full-time service with the
District is eligible for a District matching contribution. Beginning with the first
month following an employee's one year anniversary date, the District will
deposit to the ønployee's 401 (a) Plan account an amount equal to 100% ofthe
amount defened by the employee during each pay period up to a maximum of 3%
ofthe employee's base salary for each pay period. Once an employee has deferred
an amount equal to 3% ofhis/her annual salary during the calendar year, the
matching deposits to the employee's Deferred Comp Plan account will continue
each pay period in an amount equal to 3% of the employee's base salary even if
the employee is no longer making contributions.

ÐireetGen+ributien¡

n¡strietr is eli
is+rietsr+iltdeposit

te the €mpleyes's'l0l (alPlån ae€ount 0n Êmount eqHal to 3olo of the employe€'$
e

@

4. Participant Options

A. Chonges to Deferral Amount

Employees may change the amount of compensation to be deferred in future pay
periods, including the option to change the deferral amount to zero ($0). Deferral
òhangesmustbemadenolaterthanthe23]d3gygfLhglt1o¡!h_pqo-r-tq!h9-efþqt!v_e-''@
date ofthe change.

B. Catch-Up Contrlbutions

"Ase 50 Catch-up" Contributions: At any time during the year in which an
employee will attain age 50, they are eligible to make additional elective deferrals,
up to the maximum amount set by law for that year. Employees may not
participant in the "Age 50 Catch-up" during the same time they are making
additional contributions under the "Last-three-years" provision below.

39-2

A-67



POLICY NO.39 - DEFERRED COMPENS.A.TION PROGRAM POLICY

'oLast-Three-Years'o Catch-up Contributions: Under this provision, an employee

who underutilized the applicable deferral limitations ¿fter Decomber 31,1978,
may make additional deferrals in an amount not to exceed the lesser of-

(i) Twice the otherwise regular dollar lirnit. For example, if the regular annual

defened conhibution limit is $*}S001tili00, an eligible employee may be

able to defer up to an additional ${3S0016,500.

(iÐ The amount that was underutilized in previous years after December 3 1,

1978.

The catch-up provision applies to any one or more of an employee's last tkee (3)
calendar years cnding before such employee attains normal retirement age.

Normal retirement age shall be considered the range of ages beginning no earlier
than age 50 and ending no later than age 70-l/2. The normal retirement age

chosen upon election of this catch-up provision is ilrevocable for determining the

three year period.

5. Administration of the Program

The Distlict may contract with one or more investment providers to provide investments,

education, and reoord-keeping services for the Plans. The District's Plan Administrator
shail administer the Deferred Compensation Program and shall submit action or
informational items to the District's Finance and Personnel Committee and/or Board of
Directors as necessary.

Ä. Ownership of Funds

All amounts deferred under the Plans are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of
the participants and their beneficiaries.

B. Claims or Liens Against Assets

Neither the existence ofthe deferred compensation Program nor the individual
deferred compensation accounts shall cntitle any participant, beneficiary ofany
participant, or a creditor ofany participant to a clairn or lien against the assets of
the individual defened compensation accounts. The participants and their
beneficiaries shall only have the right to receive benefits pursuant to the Plans.

C. Statement of Accounts

The defened compensation investment provider will be responsible for providing
account statements no less frequently than quarterly.

7, Distributions

A. Termination of Employment

A-68



POLICY NO.39 . DBFDRRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM POLICY

Employees are eligible to take distributions from the Plans upon separation of
service from the District. The individual plan documents will provide the specific
plan requirements and modes of distribution.

B. Emergency Dlstrlbutlons

An employeo may requcst an emergency distribution from hisÆrcr 457 Plan
account due to extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result
ofevents beyond his/her control, Emergency distributions are not available under
the 401 (a) Plan. Circumstances that will constitute an unforeseeable emergency
will depend trpon the facts of each case, but distributions will only be made in
accordance with IRS regulations and the 457 Plan document.

The District may use an inv€$tment provider or other thírd party to make a

determination for an einergency distribution ¡equest.

8. Plan to Plan Transfers, Purchrse ofService Credits ¡nd Rollovers

The District's deferred compensation program allows plan to plan transfers, purchase of
servicc crcdits, and rollovers in and out of the Plans. The individual plan documents will
provide the specific plan requiremmts related to transfers of assets in or out of the Plans.

9. Amendment or Termin¡tion of Plan

The District, at its sole discretion, may terminate one or both of the Plans at any time.
llpon such termination, each participant in the affected plan will be deemed to have
revoked his/her participation as ofthe date ofsuch termination.

The District may also amend the provisions of íts Plans at any time, provided that no
amendment or termination shall affect the rights of the participants or their bene{ìciaries
to payment ofbenefits.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources
Mer€}¡9.400gJuly 11.2011
Date

Mareþ9.4009Ju1y 1 1. 201 1

DateGenersl Manager

^-69



l.

IRVINE RANCH \ryATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO.44 - ELECTRONIC MAIL IE.MAIL) POLICY

Purpose of Policy

The District realizes the need to manage the use of its computer systems, maintain a
secure work place and create a work environment in which employee productivity is
enhanced. Therefore, this policy will address access to and disclosure of electronic mail
messages sent or received by District empioyees with the use of the District's electronic
mail systern.

Use of Electronic Mail System

The District Electronic Mail (E-Mail) System is District property and is provided to
employees for their use on District business only. The District may access any electronic
mail message sent to or received by any employee of the District. Although security
codes may be used to restrict access to the electronic mail (E-Mail) system, the District
will maintain a directory of all such codes, and may utilize such codes, if necessary, to
access information within the electronic mail (E-Mail) system. Employees should not
assume that any messages within the electronic mail system are confidential.

Misuse of Electronic Mail System by Employees

It is a violation of District policy for any employee, including system administrators, to
use the electronic mail and computer systems for purposes of satisfoing idle curiosity
about the affairs of others, with no legitimate business purpose for obtaining access to the
files or communications of others. Employees found to have engaged in such oosnooping"

will be disciplined appropriately, and may be terminated.

Additional misuses of the electronic mail system include, but are not limited to, the
following:

Use of the electronic mail system to send chain letters.

Use of the electronic mail system to send copies of documents in violation of
copyright laws.

Receipt and "opening" of misaddressed electronic mail, if the employee knows
that the mail was misaddressed.

Forwarding of electronic mail messages without a legitimate business purpose
under circumstances likely to lead to embarrassment of the sender or in violation
of the expressed desire of the sender to restrict additional dissemination.

Use of the electronic mail system by terminated employees.

2.

3.

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

4Ar7o



POLICY NO.44. ELECTRONIC MAIL (E.MAIL) POLICV

F. Use of the electronic mail systems for oomoonlighting" or job searches.

G. Use of the electronic mail systems to send messages, access to which is restricted

by government security laws or regulations.

H. Use of the electronic mail systems for purely personal pu{poses.

4. Privacy

The District reserves the right to monitor, access and disclose use of the services on the

electronic mail system at the sole discretion of the District. All messages, images and/or
transmissions are District records. Additionally, the District will maintain records of the
nalnes, dates and times of all employees accessing services on the electronic mail system.

Employees should not assume that any access to information on the District's electronic
mail system is confidential.

5. District's Exclusive Authority

The District reserves the right to change this policy at any time with such prior notice, if
ffiy, as may be reasonable under the circumstances.

6. Administration of Policy

I rne and the Director
of Human Resources will be responsible for administration and enforcement of this
policy.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources
Ma¡F+H996,Iuly 1 1. 201 I
Date

Ma¡¡11.-l996Julv 1 1. 201 1

DateGeneral Manager

4+{1



IRVINE RANCH \ryATER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 46 - ACCESS AND USAGE OF THE INTERNET

1. Purpose of Policy

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the Internet access and usage available
through the District's computer network system is properly used to perform tasks directly
related to an employee's job duties. Additionally, this policy will establish a procedure

for employees to gain access to the Internet.

2. Definitions

,{. Use of Services on the Internet

Access to services on the Internet is provided to employees for their use to
perform tasks directly related to their job duties. Use of the services on the

Internet for personal purposes during break, lunch, or before or after office hours
is permitted. All messages, and/or images are District records. The District may
monitor, access and discloso usage of the services on the Internet by any
employee of the District. Employees should not assume that any access to
services on the Internet are confidential.

B. Misuse of Services on the Internet

It is a violation of District policy for any employee, including system
administrators, to use the services on the Internet in any manner not directly
related to their job duties during working time, or in any manner prohibited below
atany time. Employees found to have engaged in improper activities will be

subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Examples of access to services on the Intemet which are inappropriate at any
time, and which constitute misuse, include, but are not limited to:

1) Use of the services on the Internet that in any way are disruptive,
offensive or harmful to morale. The display of or transmission of sexually
explicit images, messages or cartoons, or any use of ethnic slurs, racial
epithets or anything that may be construed as harassment or disparagement
of others is strictly prohibited.

2) Use of the services on the Internet to send or receive copies of documents
in violation of copyright laws.

3) Use of the services on the Internet for "moonlighting" or job searches.

4) Use of the services on the Internet to read, send or receive information,
access to which is restricted by government security laws or regulations.

4#{2



3.

POLICY NO. 46 - ACCESS AND USAGE OF THE INTERNET POLICY

5) Use of the services on the Internet during office hours for personal
pulposes.

6) Use of the services on the Intemet for any deliberate action that damages

or disrupts a computing system, alters its normal performance, or causes it
to malfunction, regardless of system location or time duratíon.

7) Use of the services on the Internet in attempts to gain unauthorized access

to remote systems.

8) Use of the services on the Intemet to connect to other systems, in evasion
of the physical limitations of a remote system.

9) Use of the services on the Intemet for copying of copyrighted materials,
such as third-party software, without the express written permission of the
owner or the proper license.

10) Use of the services on the Internet for the introduction of computer
'oviruses" or other disruptive/destructive programs onto the district's
network or into extemal networks.

Privacy

The District reserves the right to monitor, access and disclose use of thc services on the
Intcmet at the sole discretion of the District. All messages, images and/or transmissions
are District records. Additionally, the District will maintain records of the names, dates

and times of all employees accessing service on the Internet. Employees should not
assume that any access to services on the Intemet is confidential.

Eligibility

All regular, fuIl-time employees who have or have access to a PC workstation connected
to the IRWD Network are eligible to apply for access to the Internet. Employees will be

required to receive approval from their supervisor, manager or Department Director, as

well as the Information Services Steering Committee Representative for their department
and the Information Services Manager.

Procedure

Employees who require lnternet access should complete an Information Services
Request. This request can be entered on-line or on paper. The request must contain a
complete description of the job-related duties to be performed. The employee's
Information Services Steering Committee department reprcscntative will review the
request with the Department Director. Upon dcpartment approval, the request will be
reviewed by the Information Services Manager. Once approved, the request will be

assigned to a member of the Information Services staff who will be responsible for
installing the appropriate software on the employee's PC workstation. Training will also

be provided.

District's Exclusive Authority

4.

6.

è-13



POLICY NO.46. ACCESS A¡ID USAGE OF THE INTERNET POLICY

The Irvine Ranch Water District reserves the right to change this policy at any time with
such prior notice, if any, as may be reasonable under the circumstances.

7. AdministrativeResponsibility

I fhe and the Director
t

of Human Resources will be responsible for administration and enforcement of this
policy.

APPROVED:

Director of Human Resources

Aug*s+.2&.4000Ju1y I l. 2011

Date

A¡*er$t?&.4gg0July 1 1. 201 1

DateGeneral Manager

ftèf,4



1.

IRVINE RANCH WA.TER DISTRICT

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

POLICY NO. 50 - VEIIICLE AND EOUIPMENT USAGE

General Policy

This document establishes the policy and responsibility for the assignment and usage of
District vehicles for conducting official District business. Any employee operating a
District vehicle must be licensed to operate that vehicle in accordance with the
Califomia Department of Motor Vehicles. This includes but is not limited to the use of
passenger restraint systems; traffic laws; and financial responsibility laws (when
appropriate). In addition to vehicle usage, this policy also addresses the use of District
owned or controlled equipment. This policy is administered by the General Manager
and any deviation to this policy must be approved by the General Manager.

Purpose of the Policy

The purpose of this policy is to communicate requirements relative to the assignment,
utilization and control of Dishict-owned vehicles andlor equipment or equipment
controlled by the District, to establish reimbursement procedures for privately-owned
vehicles used to conduct District business, and to establish insurance requirements for
employees driving their personal vehicles on official District business and employees
receiving auto allowances.

Responsibility

A. General Manager

The General Manager is responsible for administering this policy and ensuring
compliance.

B. Managers and Supervisors Responsibility

Managers and supervisors are required to ensure that employees under their control
strictly adhere to the requirements of this policy.

C. Employee Responsibility

Employees are required to comply with the requirements of this policy and other
established procedures regarding the assignment and use of vehicles and equipment.

Assignment of Vehicles for Duty Hour Retention

Employees assigned a vehicle for duty hour retention must sign a Vehicle Request
Form. The Vehicle Request Form must be signed by the employee's manager and
approved by the Department Director. This form will be kept on file by the Vehicle
Equipment (Fleet Services) Manager. If the employee's duties change whereby the
employee no longer requires duty-hour retention of the vehicle, the Department Director

,

3.

4.

s04-7s



POLICY NO. 50 - VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT USAGE pOLrCy

will ensure that the Vehicle Request Form is cancelled and the vehicle will be retumed
to Fleet Services.

5. Assignment of Vehicles for Overnight Retention

Employees assigned a vehicle for overnight retention must sign a Vehicle Request
Form. The Vehicle Request Form must be signed by the employee's manager and
approved by the Department Director. The vehicle is to be used for transportation
directly to and from work or to and from the location where the employee is required to
respond. If the employee's duties change whereby the employee no longer requires
overnight retention of the vehicle, the Department Director will ensure that the Request
Form is cancelled and the vehicle is returned to Fleet Services. This Vehicle Request
Form will be kept on file by the Fleet Services Manager. Fleet Services will submit an
annual report to the General Manager of employees assigned a vehicle for overnight
retention. Assignment of vehicles for overnight retention will be made only under the
following conditions:

A. Emergency Response Personnel

Employees who are required to respond to emergencies for the protection of public
health, employee safety and property. Responders must:

o Live within 25 miles of their normally assigned work location.
o Respond at least 15 times annually to emergencies, as determined by the

Department Director, to be eligible callouts;
o Be designated as a member of the Emergency Operations Center.

B. Designated Management Personnel

Those employees who are assigned vehicles under this section must:

o Be reasonably required to respond to after hour emergencies as determined by
the General Manager.

o BeT",

*
. Wastewater Operations Manager

1",,
tob-76



POLICY NO. 50 - VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT USAGE POLICY

Note: These managers must live within 25 miles of their normally assigned work
location.

C. Primary Standby Emergency Responders

Vehicles will be assigned to Primary Standby employees who are on the standby
progrcm rotation. Employees living more than 25 miles from their normally
assigned work location are not eligible for Primary Standby duty. Employees
assigned Primary Standby duties are permitted overnight retention of the Standby
Vehicle. The vehicle is to be used for transportation directly to and from work or to
and from the location where the employee is required to respond. Primary Standby
ønployees may use the Toll Road Transponders for traveling to and from work for
the period of their designated standby rotation.

Pool Vehicles

Pool vehicles will be available from individual dçartments and Fleet Services for use
by employees requiring transportation in the performance of their duties.

Trip Reduction Program

Participants in the Trip Reduction Program are guaranteed a ride home in the event a
participant is required to work unplanned overtime or in the event of an emergency.
Department Directors or the Rideshare Coordinator may authorize the use of a District
vehicle under these circumstances.

Employees participating in the Trip Reduction Program are encouraged to plan ahead

for non-emergency transportation needs that may arise in the course of a regular
scheduled workday. Contract commuter vans and District-owned pool vehicles will not
be available to employees to attend medical appointments, to purchase and/or attend
lunch, to run personal appointments, etc.

Vehicles Involved In an Accident

Employees involved in a vehicle accident while operating a vehicle will report such
accident by radio or telephone to the Fleet Services Manager before leaving the scene of
the accident. The driver should provide pertinent information to other drivers involved
and neither admit nor deny responsibility. Refer to SWP-I9.

Automobile Allowance

The General Manager may authorize an automobile allowance to Department Directors
and Managers. Employees receiving an automobile allowance must maintain
automobile insurance with limits no less than that required by the State of California.

o auto allowance benefits will be made based on
the percentage change in the mileage reimbursement rate set by the Internal Revenue
Service .

6.

7.

8.

9.

sA-77



10.

POLTCY NO. 50 - VEHTCLE & EQUTPMENT USAGE POLICY

Mileage Reimbursement

Department Directors may authorize The use of personal vehicles for conducting official
District business. Mileage reimbursement rates will be set equal to the Intemal Revenue
Service mileage reimbursement rates-set*on-Jan@.

Personal automobiles used on District business shall have no less than the minimum
automobile insurance required by the State of California. The employee driver agrees to
indemnify the District for any liability associated with passengers who are not
employees or those being transported who are not on District business, to the extent that
such liability does not arise as a result of acts in the direct furtherance of the employee
driver's job duties.

District-Owned or Controlled Equipment

District-owned or controlled equipment is defined as equipment that is owned by the
district, leased by the district or otherwise controlled by the district for the official use

and established purposes of conducting district business.

Employees are forbidden to use District-owned or controlled equipment for personal
use. Exceptions to this must be specifically approved by the General Manager.

Contractors are not authorized to use District owned or controlled equipment for
conducting contracted work. The definition of oocontractor" 

as outlined in AWP-7 is: A
person or f,rrm retained by IRWD under a contract for construction, maintenance or
repair, major renovation or specialty work on any IRWD system or property.
Contractual agreements must include specific language stating that the contractor must
provide all necessary equipment to conduct their work. Special attention must be given
to ensure that required safety equipment is provided by the contractor for the specific
purpose of performing contractual work. Examples of this include but are not limited to:
vehicles; cranes/hoists/forklifts; lifting equipment such as: slings and material handling
equipment. Additionall¡ contractors must provide all equipment necessary for confined
space entry. This includes equipment such as gas detection equipment; rescue

equipment; fall protection equipment; personal protective equipment. Contractors must
not be permitted to use district ladders, scaffolds, or fall protection equipment.

\ilireless Vehicle Management

Vehicles owned by the district, leased by the district, or otherwise controlled by the
district are subject to remote monitoring. Remote monitoring is intended to provide the
district with the ability to account for the vehicles at all tirnes. Remote monitoring
includes, but is not limited to, the ability to monitor vehicle location, vehicle starts and

stops, and vehicle speed.

11.

12.

50â-78



poLIeY NO, 50 -VEHICLE & EQUTPMENT USAGE POTICY

APPROVED:

Director of Hr¡man Resources
Jsry{+,ae+0July I l. 2011
Date

@y11.2011
DateGemeral Manager

rd-7e






































































	Agenda
	#3: Resolution Commending Paul Jones for his Service to the District
	#4: Workshop: Setting Connection Fees and Property Taxes for FY 2011-12
	#5: Minutes of Regular Board Meeting
	#6: Ratify/Approve Board of Directors' Attendance at Meetings and Events
	#7: Discovery Science Center Annual Report 
	#8: Self-insured Workers' Compensation Coverage
	#9: Revised Personnel Policies and Procedures
	#10: Portola Pipelines Final Acceptance
	#11: Wells 21 and 22 Wellhead Facilities Construction Award 
	#12: UCI Student Housing Water Use Efficiency Pilot Program
	#13: Notice of Intent to Detach Parcels and Adopt Plan of Works for ID 256



